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Chairman’s Statement

+ Avyear of positives Sky's excellent financial results for the year clearly

demonstrate that we are starting to realise the benefit of our significant
investment in digital television in Britain.

Indeed throughout the last five years, Sky has always been the driving
force behind making the UK the world leader in digital television, and

| fully expect Sky to build on its market leadership to deliver increased
financial and operational strength over the next year.

The winning formula of offering an unrivalled entertainment product
combined with excellent customer service has helped Sky to win many
new customers and maintain world-class levels of customer loyalty. As a
result, by the end of June 2003, Sky digital had reached over 6.8 million
subscribers and succeeded in consistently outperforming its operational
targets. With the Company poised to sign up its seven millionth
customer later this calendar year, the focus is now on returning to,

and exceeding, the levels of profitability previously achieved in analogue.

Sky’s channels continue to grow in both their reach and popularity.
Real progress has been made this year towards achieving our ambition
of Sky in every home. Three of our Sky channels are now broadcast
free-to-air via the digital terrestrial network that will, in due course,
replace analogue broadcasting, thus completing the revolution in UK
broadcasting started by Sky digital.

Sky recognises its responsibilities as a broadcaster and as one of

the largest British companies. Our commitment to the community

is expressed through a host of initiatives, which are particularly focused
on encouraging young people to reach their full potential.

There have been a number of changes to the Board during the year.

[ ' would particularly like to thank Leslie Hinton and Martin Pompadur,
who left the board in February 2003, for their contribution to Sky's
development over many years. The new non-executive Directors who
joined the board during the year were Chase Carey, James Murdoch,
Jacques Nasser, Gail Rebuck, and Lord Wilson of Dinton.

Finally, | would like to thank Sky's staff for their continued support. It is
their dedication to serving the needs of our customers that has ensured
Sky's continuing success.

11 August 2003
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We continued to experience strong growth in DTH subscribers,
adding 744,000 subscribers during the year

Customer loyalty has remained very strong, with churn below
10% for the year

For the first time, Sky has distributed its channels on free-to-air
terrestrial television, with the launch of three channels on Freeview

Revenues increased 15% to £3,186 million

Operating profit bgfore goodwill and exceptional items increased
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Operating and Financial Review

Sky delivered strong growth in profitability in
the year to June 2003, building on the excellent
operational performance of the business.

Sky is now looking forward to delivering increasing
financial returns on the considerable investment it

has made in digital television.

. Martin Stewve ot
Chief Financial Officer
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The business, its objectives and its strategy

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc and its
subsidiaries (“Sky”, the “Group”) operate the
leading pay TV broadcasting service in the
United Kingdom (“UK”) and the Republic of
Ireland (“Ireland”), deriving revenues from
television broadcasting services and certain
ancillary functions which are provided to both
retail and wholesale customers.

Sky is an established and widely recognised brand.
with a reputation for quality and innovation. Sky
operates and distributes 26 wholly-owned channels
(“Sky’s Channels”) and retails a further 96 third party
channels to direct-to-home (“DTH") viewers via its
digital service. In addition to this, Sky operates

the Sky Box Office service (*SBO"), which provides
pay-per-view services covering films. sporting
events and concerts.

Sky's main objective is to build upon its position

as the leading provider of multichannel! television
services in the UK and Ireland in order to deliver
long-term growth in shareholder value. Sky has
established a series of key operational and financial
targets, which ensure focus on certain pricrities that
will drive the business to achieve its main objective.
These are as follows:

+ Continued expeansion of the total DTH
subscriber base
Sky seeks to achieve this expansion in two
main ways: firstly, through the acquisition of new
DTH subscribers and secondly, through the
maintenance of a low churn rate. Sky's current
target is to reach 7 million subscribers by the end
of calendar 2003. Maintaining a low churn rate
is currently a key component of maximising the
return Sky makes on its investment in customer
acquisition.

Sky’s customer relationship management (*“CRM™)

centres, principally based in Scotland, play a key
role in addressing this priority. The CRM centres

deal with the handiing of orders from subscribers,
the establishment and maintenance of subscriber

accounts, the invoicing and coliection of revenue
and telemarketing and customer services. These
activities, together with a high level of customer

service and familiarity with customer needs. allow

the centres 1o play a key role, both in customer
acquisition and customer retention.

'

Maintenance of subscriber quality

Sky evaluates the financial return on its subscribers

by, amongst other things, measuring Average
Revenue per User ("ARPU") and Subscriber
Acquisition Cost (“SAC"). Sky's current strategy
is to increase the revenues earmed from its
subscribers to achieve its ARPU target of £400
by the end of the calendar year 2005. Growth
in ARPU is expected 1o be derived from a
combination of growth in revenues from core
subscription products, new services such as Sky+
and the Extra Digibox. as well as revenues from
Interactive and other services.

4
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Consistent reductions in SAC means that it

has become increasingly profitable for Sky to
acquire new subscribers. Reductions in SAC
have principally been driven by the combination of
lower costs of set-top boxes and other installation-
related hardware, together with increases in the
contribution made by the customer towards the
installation cost, particularly for those customers
on lower-tier packages. There has also been a
favourable impact on the costs of marketing for
acquisition purposes due to a change in the mix
of customer acquisition routes towards lower-cost
direct sales.

Growing the popuiarity of Sky's channels

Sky's Channels generate significant advertising
revenues for the Group and contribute to the
appeal of the Sky digital platform. Sky One
rermains the UK's most watched non-terrestrial
channel; together with Sky One Mix. which was
launched in Decembber 2002. it had an average
multichannel viewing share of 3.5% for the financial
year. Sky News has a reputation for impartial,
authoritative and up to the minute coverage of
breaking news, During 2003, Sky launched three
new music channels, featuring an innovative
interactive scheduling system. As the universe of
multichannel homes has grown, Sky's Channels
have been able to grow their share of the UK
advertising market and Sky currently expects
this trend to continue.

Quality programming

Investment in attractive programming is a key
factor in generating the subscription revenues that
make up 80% (2002: 80%) of Sky's total revenue.
Sky's strategy is to acquire exclusive pay TV rights
for films. live sporting events and for other general
entertainment programming. At the same time,
Sky's pricrity is to control the costs of all of these
types of programming in order to help deliver
improved operating margins.

Innovation in prodiicts and services, and
investment in the future

Sky has a strong track record of innovation.
operating in a highly competitive environment,
which is reliant on technology that is subject to
rapid change and development. Sky therefore
seeks to invest and adapt in order to remain
competitive and keeps under review emerging -
technologies for the distribution of entertainment
content or for the provision of new services to
Sky's subscriber base.

Sky has successfully introduced new products
and services such as Sky+, Sky Talk and the
Extra Digibox and these continue to increase

in popularity. Sky's DTH customers also have
access to Sky's digital interactive services,

Sky Active, and a range of other digital interactive
services. accessible either through stand-alone
portals such as Sky Active, ar in conjunction
with certain broadcast channels. These services
include betting, games-playing, shopping,
interactive programming. interactive advertising
and telephony-based services such as voting.

DTH subscribers (milion}

01
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DTH revenue (€ million)

01 1.537
02 1.929

Operating margin (before goodwill and
exceptional items)

01 5.9% .
02
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12.2m

The record number
of households in

the UK and Ireland
receiving one or more
of Sky’s channels
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Operating profit (before goodwill and
exceptional items) (€ million)
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ARPU
Quarterly annualised
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Performance in the year

Total revenue for the twelve months ending

30 June 2003 (“the year”) exceeded £3 billion
for the first time, an increase of 15% over the
year to 30 June 2002 (“the comparabie period”)
to £3,186 million. Total operating costs before
goodwill and exceptional items increased by
9% to £2,815 million, generating an operating
profit margin before goodwill and exceptional
items of 12% (2002: 7%). Sky continues to
benefit from strong operational gearing;
operating profit before goodwill and exceptional
items increased by 94% over the comparable
period to £371 million. Profit after tax was

£190 million, the Group’s first full year of
positive earnings since the launch of Sky
digital. Since net debt peaked at 31 December
2001 at around £1,833 million, the Group has
reduced its net debt by £728 million, to end
the period at £1,105 miilion.

Operating review

At 30 June 2003. the number of DTH satelliie
subscribers in the UK and Ireland was 6,845,000
representing a net increase of 744,000 in the year.
Sky remains highly confident of achieving its target
of 7 million subscribers by the end of calendar
year 2003.

As a result of the continued growth in the number
of DTH subscribers and the launch of the digital
terrestrial free-to-air service, Freeview. in October
2002, the total number of UK and Ireland households
receiving one or more of Sky's channels increased
by 2.0 million to a record 12,2 million in the year.

DTH churn for the year stands at 9.4%. a
reduction of over one percentage point on the
comparable period.

The annualised average revenue per DTH
subscriber ("ARPU") at 30 June 2003 was £366.
The increase of 5% over the comparable penod
reflected the change in Sky's UK retail prices which
was effective from 1 January 2003. along with
increased contributions from products such as
Sky+ and the Extra Digibox and higher usage of
interactive services.

At 30 June 2003. there were 105.000 subscribers
to Sky+. representing an increase of 77.000 in
the year. successfully achieving Sky's target of
naving 100.000 subscribers by 30 June 2003.
Sky+ enhances Sky's reputation for innovation

and continues to lead the growing personal video
recorder ("PVR"} category in the UK. The early
evidence is that Sky+ customers demonstrate
encouraging levels of customer loyalty and a high
propansity to subscribe 10 top-tier packages. In
addition. at 30 June 2003. there were 165.000
subscribers to the Extra Digibox. representing
111.000 net additions during the year. 57% of Sky+
subscribers are also Extra Digibox subscribers.

Sky digital continues 1o offer the widest choice

in muitichannel television in the UK and Ireland.

At 30 June 2003. there were over 335 channels
available via digital satellite. including over 120
channels retailed by Sky. around 160 free TV and
radio channels. and over 85 pay-per-view channels.

Sky’'s own channels have recently increased their
potential reach. Under the terms of an arrangement
recently agreed with ntl. Sky One. Sky News and
Sky Sports News will continue to be carried on ntl's
digital cable network. until the end of 2006. An
additional six Sky channels. including Sky One Mix.
Sky Travel. Sky Travel Extra and the recently
launched channels from Sky Music (The Amp.
Flaunt and Scuzz), will be distributed on ntl's cable
network for the first time.

Sky conctuded a new 5-year agreement with the
BBC in June 2003, ensuring that all of the BBC's
channels, including all regional variations, will be
listed on Sky's Electronic Programme Guide
{"EPG"). The BBC channels are unencrypted but
the BBC has secured a regionalisation service using
Sky's conditional access technology. to ensure
that Sky subscribers will continue to receive their
appropriate national and regional variation of
BBC One and BBC Two. Sky also announced
the renewal for five years of its conditional access
agreement with Channel Five, commencing
Cctober 2003




Programming

As multichannel penetration continued to rise.
the viewing share of Sky channels across all UK
television homes grew to 6.4% for the year
compared 10 6.1% in the previous year,

Sky News continues to be the leading 24-hour

news channel within multichannel homes. beating
the viewing share of BBC News 24 and the ITV
News channel combined. Industry recognition has
continued with a second British Academy award and
the Royal Television Society News Channel of the
Year award for the second year running, underlining
Sky News' reputation as the home of breaking news.

Sky Cne continues to lead audience delivery amongst
the key 16-34 year old demographic. Sky One
combines a commitment to commissioning and
developing factual entertainment programmes

with a growing reputation for fast turn-around
documentaries such as Michae! Jackson: The
Untold Stary.

Sky Sports had another strong year. Its viewing
share across UK homes grew by 13% on the
comparable period and programming was increased
across its five dedicated channels. Memorable
moments during the year included Europe’s dramatic
Ryder Cup victory at The Belfry, the England Rugby
Union team's record-breaking run of victories against
the Southern Hemisphere sides in both the Autumn
internationals and Summer Tour, and the Cricket
World Cup. The iive Premiership match between
Arsenal and Manchester United in April aftracted

Sky's highest audience for five years with an in-
home peak of 3.8 million viewers. On the final day
of the Premiership season. Sky Sports’ three

five matches attracted the highest ever final day
audience and. over the entire FA Premier League
season. average audiences were up 17% on the
pricr vear.

Over the past twelve months Sky has secured
three significant football rights agreements. In
September 2002, Sky won the rights to cover live
UEFA Champions League football for the first time,
and from September 2003 will have exclusive live
coverage of all Wednesday matches in the UK and
up to six live ties on Tuesday nights. Sky has also
recently announced that it will share the rights with
the BBC to broadcast the Football Association's
key properties in a new four-year agreement

commencing at the start of the 2004/05 season.

The new contract has yielded a significant cost
saving compared to the existing contract. Finally,
on 8 August 2003. it was announced that Sky had
successfully bid for all four packages of exclusive
live UK rights to FA Premier League football from
the beginning of the 2004/05 season to the end of
the 2006/07 season. This new agreement offers
our subscribers unparalleled coverage of Premier
League football with more games available for live
broadcast than ever before. The total cost of the
new agreement for the four UK live packages is
£1,024 milion over three years.

Sky Movies' share of viewing for the year within
multichannel hemes was 3.6%. with Saturday
Premieres continuing to perform strongly. From
June 2003 there has been a shift in emphasis in
movie scheduling away from weekday slots and
towards the weekend line-ups. A record number
of "Meganhits” were broadcast this year. amost
triple the number shown five years ago. Sky's
innovative use of muitiplexes to allow a film to be
shown at multiple start times on the same day has
proven to be very popular, generating 1.8 million
viewers for Jurassic Park lli and 1.3 million viewers
for Harry Potter and the Philosopher's Store.

01 SKY+ IS CHANGING THE WAY QUR
CUSTOMERS EXPERIENCE TV

02  SKY'S WIDE RANGE OF INTERACTIVE
SERVICES OFFERS SOMETHING FOR
ALL THE FAMILY

03 WITH SKY, KIDS CAN GET THEIR OWN
EXTRA DIGIBOX TO CATCH THE SHOWS
THEY WANT TO WATCH

£400

(our ARPU target)

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc - -
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Operating and Financial Review

£3,186m

Total revenue increased by 15%
in the year to £3,186m

Financial Review

Turnover Total revenue for the year grew by 15%
10 £3,186 million. driven by further strong DTH
revenue growth and continued growth in advertising
and interactive revenues.

DTH revenue. which now accounts for 74% of total
turnover (2002: 68%), grew by 21% to £2,341 milion
for the year. This growth reflects the 14% increase

in the average number of DTH subscribers and an
increase in the non-interactive component of ARPU,
largely driven by the change to Sky's UK retail prices
in January 2003. but also by the introduction of new
products such as Sky+ and the Extra Digibox.

Cable revenues. which account for 6% of total
revenue (2002: 8%). fell by 11% on the comparable
period. with the nurmber of UK cable homes and the
average number of premium channels taken by each
cable subscriber falling. Sky announced. on 23 June
2003, that it had concluded an agreement for the
supply of nine basic Sky channels to ntl. effective
until the end of 2006.

The termination of ITV Digital's digital terrestrial

TV ("DTT") operation on 30 April 2002 has resulted
in a one-off reduction in total wholesale revenue of
around 18%.

Sky's advertising revenue continued to outperform
the market with a 13% increase on the comparable
period to £284 million, principally reflecting the benefit
from strong share deals negotiated with advertising
agencies for calendar year 2003, and strong growth in
Sky's overall subscriber base. Sky currently expects
this above-market growth to continue for at least the
remainder of the calendar year.

Interactive applications continue to contribute to
Sky's revenue growth, with total interactive revenue
increasing by 17% to £218 million, of which

£117 million related to Sky Bet, Sky’s wholly-owned
bookmaker. The increase in betting revenue was
driven by a threefold increase over the comparable
period in the total volume of bets placed to over 15
million, of which 12 million were interactive television
bets. Sky Active revenue amounted to £101 million,
increasing by 119% on the comparable period. The

increase was principally due 1o the success of
interactive advertising and Sky Buy. Interactive
advertising is demonstrating strong potential, with
revenue increasing 54% on the comparable period.

Other revenue for the year increased by 8% to
£141 million, primarily due to hardware-related
revenue on the sale of Sky+ and Extra Digiboxes.

Programming costs Programming costs
increased by 11% to £1.604 million, principally as a
result of contractual increases in sports costs and
volume-related increases in movie and third party
channel costs.

Sports costs. which represent 45% of total
programiming spend (2002: 46%). increased by
£60 million to £723 million. This was principally
driven by contractual increases in rights costs and
the costs of non-annual events such as the Ryder
Cup and the Cricket World Cup. Contractual
increases were partly offset by savings achieved
by the decisions made not to renew agreements
to broadcast UEFA Cup and Scottish Premier
League football, and Six Nations Rugby.

An increase in movie costs of £37 million to £397
million reflected the increase in the average number
of movie subscribers. around a 30% increase in the
number of output titles qualifying as “Megahits” over
the comparable period. and contractual increases.
The increase was offset by savings resulting from
the continued weakness of the US dollar,

DTH distribution fees paid to third party channeis
rose by £54 miflion to £351 miillion. due to the
increased numbper of subscribers, contractual per
subscriber fee increases and small changes to the
channel line-up. These increases were partly offset
by savings generated by the renewal, on improved
terms, of contracts with Fiextech and UKTV (five-year
agreements from January 2002). Sci-Fi (a two-year
extendable agreement from November 2002) and
Cartoon Network (a five-year agreement from
January 2003). In ali cases, savings of at lsast
15% on the pence per subscriber cost of channel
carriage were achieved.

Analysis of turnover 2002/03

I Direct-to-home 74%

:’{y) subscribers
Cable B%
subscribers
7 Advertising 9%
1 Interactive 7%
§ Other 4%

Analysis of operating costs 2002/03
Before goodwill and exceptionat items

i 1 Programming  57%
G Transmission & 5%
related functions

3 I Marketing 14%
B Subscriber

management  12%

Administration 8%

I Betting 4%
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Entertainment programming costs increased by
£g mifion to £84 miflion. principally due to the
scheduling of new acquired programming and the
launch of four new Sky channels during the year
{Sky One Mix, Flaunt. The Amp and Scuzz).
Operating costs of Sky News rose by £5 million to
£33 million. driven predominantly by the additional
costs of coverage of the conflict in Irag.

Other operating costs Transmission and related
costs before exceptional items decreased by

¢4 milion to £143 million, mainly due to reductions
in technical operations costs through transponder

cost efficiency savings.

Marketing costs at £401 million deciined by

£18 million on the comparable period despite
broadly the same number of digital installations.
SAC was £207. representing a reduction of £27

on the comparable period. The reduction was due
to the combination of reduced hardware costs. an
increase in install revenues and a greater proportion
of direct acquisitions.

Subscriber management costs increased by

£33 million to £324 milion. Subscriber management
costs comprise two main activities: customer
relationship management ("CRM") costs associated
with managing the existing subscriber base; and
supply chain costs relating to systems and
infrastructure and the hardware costs of new
oroducts purchased by subscribers. such as Sky+
and Extra Digiboxes. As a result of customer
contact centre efficiencies and lower incoming call
volumes. CRM costs per subscriber have fallen by
15%. leading to an absolute cost reduction of 3%
over the comparable period to £148 milion. Supply
chain costs increased by 28% over the comparable
period to £176 miliion, reflecting the growth in the
number of Sky+ and Extra Digiboxes and costs
associated with the smartcard swap-out as part of
stringent on-going anti-piracy measures,

Administration costs before goodwill and exceptional
items increased by £33 million to £236 milion,
including increases in insurance costs and disaster
recovery planning Costs.

Betting costs increased by £20 milion to
€108 million, directly as a resutt of the continued
strong growth in betting revenues.

Earnings before interest. tax. depreciation and
amortisation before exceptional items (“EBITDA™ for
the year increased by 72% to £468 million.

Goodwill Goodwill amortisation increased by

£3 milion on'the comparable period to £122 million.
This increase was fargely due to a £5 million
provision against goodwill which originally arose

on the acquisition of Opia Index Limited ("Opta’).
This provision was made as a result of the Group's
announcement in December 2002 that it would
ciose Opta and the carrying value of this goodwill
has been reduced 10 nil. The Group is currently in
negotiations to sell or license some or all of Opta’s
assets 10 a third party.

Exceptional items During the comparable period.
the Group made an exceptional operating provision
of £22 million against the wholesale revenues that
it was owed by [TV Digital. During the vear. the
Group received a payment amounting to £5 miflion
of this debt. generating a credit to the profit and
loss account. This operating exceptional item has
been included within operating profit.

The Group has also made a provision against some
of its minority equity investments. This has led to a
net non-cash exceptional charge of £15 million,
which is accounted for below operating profit.

The Group recognised an exceptional deferred tax
creclit of £123 million during the year (see Taxation
section betow).

Joint Ventures The Group's share of net operating
profits in joint ventures increased to £3 milion in the
period. an increase of £80 million on the comparable
period. principally reflecting the cessation of equity
accounting for the Group’s share of losses incurred
by KirchPayTV from 8 February 2002.

Taxation The net tax credit for the period includes
a current pre-exceptional tax charge of £85 milion
and a deferred tax credit of £3 million (which is
included within the total £28 million non-exceptional
deferred tax credit) due to the Group generating
profits chargeable 10 corporation tax in this fiscal
vear. Before the effect of goodwill, joint ventures
and exceptional items. this results in an underlying
effective tax rate of 31%. slightly higher than the
UK statutory rate due to a number of standard
disallowable items.

As a result of the significant investment made

in digital. and the resultant losses incurred. the
Group has accumulated significant tax losses within
different Group companies.

Under the UK Accounting Standard FRS19. a
deferred tax asset in respect of these tax losses
may only be recognised in the Group’s balance
sheet at the point when it is ‘more likely than not’
that there will be sufficient future taxable profits to
offset the tax losses thereby being capitalised.

As the Group's and individual entities” profitability
has continued to rise it has become increasingly
possible to satisfy the requirements of FRS19.
During the six months ended 31 December 2002,
the Group recognised a £40 million deferred tax
asset, principally as a result of the forecast future
profitability of one of the Group's trading subsidiaries.

Subsequently. following a review of the forecast
utilisation of tax losses within the Group. and as a
consequence of a planned reorganisation of certain
assets within the Group. the Directors have been
able 1o conclude that the required FRS19 conditions
have also now been satisfied in respect of other

tax losses in the Group, permitting the Group to
recognise a further deferred tax asset of £123 million,
which has been treated as an exceptional tax credit
dug to its size. This brings the total deferred tax

E PS before goodwill

and exceptional items
increases to
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This yvear Sky
generated a

net operating
cash inflow of

£664m

period. Following this recogniion, ins Groun has
no further significant unrecognised UK losses, and
therefore. over the long-term. the Group’s ongonNg
UK tax charge in tne profit and 10ss account 1s
expected (0 continug at a raig of around 31%

After the £85 milon cu
charge for the pen
credi, the tax charps on
and Sky's share of jont veniures' &
net tax credit for the pariod was C83 muhon,
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During the period. C£3 mition o Advanced
Corporation Tax (ACT) trought tonward was utilised
10 reduce the Group's cash iax hiabihiy

Earnings The Group nas recorded the firsi iufl vear
of positive earnings since ihe launch of Sky digiat
afier generating & profu after tax of £190 millon.
With the weighted average numbsr of ordinary
shares outstanding duning the year (excluding those
shares held by the ESOP Trust) at 1.215 million.
earnings per share beiore goodwill and exceptional
items of 10.5 pence per share was achieved.
compared to a loss per share of 2.7 pence for

the comparable period.

Cash flow and interest With EBITDA of

463 million. exceptional items of £5 million and
cash generatad from the movement in working
capital of £181 mithon, the Group generaied

£664 million of net operating cash inflove. This
represents the conversion of 179% of operating
profit before goodwill and excepiional items to
cash inflow. After taking inio account casn
outflows principally comprising net casn mnterest
payments of £125 million. capital expendiiure of
£98 miltion and tax paid of £18 milion. net debt
decreased by £423 mitlion in the penod. from
£1.528 million to £1.105 milion, At 30 June 2003,
leverage (the ratio of net debi 10 EBITDA] was 2.4
times, and interest cover {the ratio of EBITDA to
net interest payable} was 2.1 umes.

Despite the continued growth of the business. Sky
generated cash from the movement in working
capital this year due to a combination of one-off
factors (for example the unwinding of prapaymenis
of certain sports rights) and factors which will
continue 10 apply as the business continues 10 grow
The latter includes Sky's subscription collection
cycle. and the payment in arrears for certain
programming costs. such as those incurred in
respect of the carriage of third party channels.

Other recurring components of the positive working
capital movement include the reversal. over ume,
of prepayments made for Sky's long-ierm satelite
transponder leases. and the accounting treaiment
for certain share-based employee remuneration
schemes which. under UK GAAP. result in charges
to the profit and loss account. despite being non-
cash in nature.

Net interest costs of €115 milon decreased by
£22 mitlion on the comparable penod due 1o
lower levels of indebtedness and lower average
interest rates.

Returns to shareholders On 5 May 1999,

it was announced that ihe Board had decidad
to suspend dividend paymenis (o shareholders.
Accordingly. no dividends have been pad o
proposed since that date.

Balance sheet

Financing

The Group's principal sources of liguidity are
operaing cash flow, combined with access to

tihe aggregate £800 million (2002: £1.050 million)
revohang credit facilities. described in more detail
belovy, Long-term funding comes primarily from US
dollar and stering-denominated public bond debt.
wiich are described in more detail below.

Revoiong Credit Faciliies ("RCF's)

On 20 March 2003 the Group signed a new.
five-year €600 milion RCF. The new facility was
used to cancel the Group's £750 million facility.
onginally due to mature in June 2004, and will be
used ior general corporate purposes. tn addition.
the Groun's existing £300 million facility was
voluntanly reduced to £200 million and will
maiure. as before. in June 2004. Available
faciities, therefore. now total £800 million, and
will reduce to £600 million from June 2004, in line
wiih the anticipated reduced capital requirements
of ihe Group. which has been cash flow positive
since January 2002.

Under the terms of the £200 million facility. interest
accrues at between 0.500% and 1.750% per
annum above the London inter-Bank Offer Rate
"LIBOR"), depending on the Group's credit rating.
Uncler ihe terms of the £B00 milkon facility, interest
is fixedd al 1.125% per annum above LIBOR

il June 2004, and thereafier accrues at rates
between 0.600% and 1.125% per annum above
LIBOR. depending on the Group's ratio.of net debt
{0 EBITDA, provided that the rate does not fall
betovs 0.700% per annum prior to 20 March 2006.
At 30 June 2003. the ratio of net debt to EBITDA
was 2 < (2002: 5.6). Interest cover (the ratio of
EBITDA 1o net interest payable) was 4.1 (2002:
2.01. The Group currently expects these ratios to
conunue 10 IMmprove.

Guaranieed noles

During the current and prior year the Group
also had in issue the following publicly traded
guaranteed notes:

i

USS300 million, 7.300% Guaranteed Notes,
repayable in October 2008. The Group entered
into swap transactions to convert the US dollar
proceeds to pounds sterling. of which half carries
a fixed rate of interest of 8.384% until maturity. The
remainder was fixed at 7.940% until 15 April 2002,
and at 6.130% for the remaining life of the Notes.

.. British Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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£100 miliion, 7.750% Guaranteed Notes and
USS830 million, 8.200% Guaranteed Notes. both
repavabie in July 2008. The proceeds of the

US dollar Notes were swapped at inception into
pounds sterling at a fixed rate of 7.653% per
annum. In December 2002 and March 2003,

the Group amended the terms relating to £63.5
miflion of these swap arrangements. the effect of
which was to fix the interest raie on £63.5 million
at 5.990% until January 2004, after which time it
will revert to floating six months LIBOR plus a
margin of 3.390%.

USSB00 million. 6.875% Guaranteed Notes.
repayable in February 2009, The US dollar
proceeds have been swapped into pounds
sterling at a fixed rate of 8.200% per annum.

Fixed and current asssis

Intangible assets decreased by £121 milion, from
£657 milion to £536 million. due to the amortisation
of goodwill and the provision against Opta goodwill.
Intangible assets mainly comprise the goodwill that
arose on the acquisitions of British Interactive
Broadcasting Holdings Limited ("BiB"), Sports
Internet Group pic ("SIG") and WAPTV.

Tangible fixed assets increased in the period

by £3 million. mainly due to £101 million of
additions, including investment in customer-
facing technology. improvement in web-based
technology and improved back-up facllities. partly
offset by depreciation of £98 million. Fixed asset
investments decreased by £20 million. mainly
due to the further provision against our minority
investments in football clubs of £21 million

made at 31 December 2002. Subsequently.

the Group reduced its provision against its
investment in Chelsea Viliage plc at 30 June 2003
by £3 million. following the agreement to sell

its minority investment in July 2003,

Net current assets decreased by £88 million,
principally caused by an increase in creditor
balances. mainly due to the increase in deferred
subscription revenues resulting from an increased
subscriber base: a decrease in debtors due to the
amortisation of the FAPL prepayment: and a
decrease in non-programming stock due to

the utifisation of set-top box stocks outweighing
purchases in the period.

Fesenes

British Sky Broadcasting Group pic ("the
Company™) had a deficit of £1.120 million

on its company-only profit and loss reserve at

30 June 2003 In order 1o improve the presentation
of the Company's balance sheet. and give the
Company greater flexibifity in any future distribution
policy. the Directors intend to propose a resolution
at the Annual General Meeting 10 eliminate the
deficit by reducing the Company's share premium
account. In order for this to take effect. the
reduction will require the subseguent approval of
the High Court.

Treasury policy and risk management The
Group's treasury function is responsible for raising
finance for the Group's cperations. together withv
managing foreign exchange. interest rate and
counterparty risks. Treasury operations are
conducted within a framework of policies and
guidelines authorised and reviewed by both the
Audit Committee and the Board. who receive
regular updates of treasury activity. Derivative
instruments are transacted for risk management
purposeas only. (tis the Group's policy that all
hedging is to cover known risks and that no trading
in financial instruments is undertaken. Regular and
frequent reporting to management is required for all
transactions and exposures and the internai control
environment is subject 1o periodic review by the
Group's internal audit team. The amount of cash
placed with any one institution is restricted to
ensure counterparty risks are minimised.

The Group’s principal market risks are its exposures
o changes in interest rates and currency exchange
rates, which arise both from the Group’s sources of
finance and from its operations. Following evaluation
of those positions, the Group selectively enters into
derivative financial instruments 10 manage these
exposures. Interest rate swaps are used to hedge
interest rate risks. forward rate agreements to
hedge transactional currency exposures and cross-
currency interest rate swaps to hedge exposures
on long term foreign currency debt.

Interest rate management The Group has
financial exposures to both sterling and US dollar
interest rates. arising primarily from bank borrowings
and long-term bonds. These exposures are managed
by borrowing at fixed and variable rates of interest
and by using interest rate swaps to manage
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The principal
method of hedging interest rate risk is to enter into
créss~currency swap arrangements, the effects of
which are to fix the Group's sterling interest costs
at certain rates. The majority of these arrangements
relate to the Group's US dollar-denominated debt
and provide for the exchange, at specified intervals,
of fixed-rate amounts of dollars in return for fixed-
raie amounts of sterting. Alt of the Group's debt
exposure is denominated in sterling after cross-
currency swaps are taken into account: however

at 30 June 2003. the split of aggregate borrowings
into its core currencies was US dollar 84% and
sterling 16%.

The Group also enters into sterling interest rate
swap arrangements which provide for the exchange,
at specified intervals. of the difference between fixed
rates and variable rates, calculated by reference to
an agreed notional sterling amount. The fair vaiue of
interest rate and ¢ross currency swaps held as of
30 June 2003 was approximately £7 milion in the
Group's favour. {30 June 2002: £80 million in the
Group’s favour).

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Operating and Financia

The Group's exposure to floating interest rates

is currently limited to drawings upon its revolving
credit bank facilities. At 30 June 2003 bank facility
drawings represented 7% of the Group's total debt
{30 June 2002: 32%). 83% of the Group's total debt
at 30 June 2003 is fixed-rate after taking account of
interest rate swaps (30 Jung 2002: 87%).

To ensure continuity of funding. the Group’s policy
is 10 ensure that available funding matures over a
period of years. At 30 June 2003. 47% of the
Group’s available funding was due to mature in
more than five years (30 June 2002: 42%).

Currency exchange rates The Group's revenues
are substantially denominated in pounds sterling.
e e o e S e although a significant proportion of operating costs
o ’ o ) is denominated in US dollars. In the year to 30 June
e 2003, 15% of operating costs (£424 million) were

: : denominated in US dollars (30 June 2002: 15%,;
G T £393 million). These costs relate mainly to the
Group's long term programming contracts with
US suppliers.

The Group currently manages its US dollar/pound
sterling exchange risk exposure by the purchase of
forward foreign exchange agreements for up to

18 months ahead. All forward rate agreements are
in respect of firm commitments only, and represent
approximately 90% of dollar-denominated costs
over the relevant 18 month period.

At 30 June 2003, the Group had outstanding
commitments 1o purchase in aggregate
USS903 million at average rates of USS1.423
respectively to £1.00. Although these financiat
instruments can mitigate the effect of shornt-term
fluctuations in exchange rates. there can be no
effective or complete hedge against long-term
currency fluctuations.

Our primary euro exposure arises as a result of
revenues generated from our subscribers in the
Repubiic of Ireland. These euro-denominated
revenues are offset to a certain extent by euro-
denominated costs. relating mainly to certain
transponder rentals, which results in a euro surplus.
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During the vear, surplus euros were exchanged for
sterling on currency spot markeis. In the twelve
months to 30 June 2003. euro 538 million {2002:

euro 55 million) was exchanged at spot rates for
sterling. A further euro 30 miflion has been retained 10
meet obligations under forward foreign exchange
contracts for the puchase of Swiss francs. (see below)

During the period. the Group acquired the pay

TV rights 1o centain UEFA Champions League
football matches from the 2003/04 season to the
end of the 2005/06 season. Payments in respect of
these rights will be made pursuant to the contract in
Swiss francs, which means that the Group will be
exposed to the Swiss franc/pound sterling exchange
rate. In line with the Group’s policy of limiting foreign
exchange ransactions to fixed price instruments. all
of this exposure for 2003/04 {CHF 99 million) has
been hedged via the use of forward contracts for the
exchange of euros and Swiss francs.

Corporate responsibility The centrepiece of the
Group's community activities. '‘Reach for the Sky'.
attracted 3.875 young people at events where they
were able to build their confidence and learn new
skills in motivating surroundings. The programme
was a finalist in Business in the Community Awards
for Excellence. A major new disablility strategy has
been launched to ensure that disabled people can
access all areas of the Group. including its services.
technology andg employment.

Sky is & member of the FTSE4Good Index and the
Dow Jones Sustainability Index. These indices are
limited to companies that can prove they are
working towards goals such as positive stakeholder
relationships and environmental sustainability.

Employee share option schemes The Group
manages its risk in respect of certain employee

share option schemes through a dedicated

Employee Share Option Plan, which purchases {
the Company's shares in the open market from

time to time.

The accounting policies in respect of market risk
sensitive instruments are disciosed in the financial
statements in Notes 1. 21 and 25. RN

Going concern The Directors consider that the
operating cash flows of the Group. together with
its own bank facilities, will be sufficient 10 cover
the Group's projected operating requirements and
to settle or refinance the Group's other liabilities
as they fall due. Accordingly, the accounts are
prepared on a going concern basis.

11 August 2003
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Directors’ Biographies

Tony Ball (age 47} Executive Director

Tony Ball was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director in June 1999.
He was previously President and CEQ of Fox/Liberty Networks. He also spent three
years of his career with BSkyB as General Manager/Broadcasting. Mr Ball was a Non-
Executive Director of Marks and Spencer plc and resigned this position in
September 2002,

Martin Stewart (age 39) txscutive Dirsctor

Martin Stewart was appoeinted as Chief Financial Officer and a Director of the Company
in May 1998. He previously served the Company as Head of Commercial Finance from
March 1896. Prior to joining the Company, Mr Stewart was employed at Polygram for
five years, latterty at Polygram Filmed Entertainment, where he was Finance Director for
two years. In February 2001, Mr Stewart was appointed a Non-Executive Director of
Michaet Page International pic.

Philip Bowman (age 50) Independent Non-Exec Director

Philip Bowman has been a Director of the Company since December 1984. He is Chief
Executive of Allied Domecq pic, a director of Burberry Group plc and a member of the
UK Industrial Advisory Board of Alchemy Partners. He was previously Chairman of
Liberty pic, a Director of Coles Myer Ltd in Australia, an Executive Director of Bass plc
and Chairman and Chief Executive of Bass Taverns Ltd.

Chase Carey (age 49) Non-Exscutive Director

Chase Carey was appointed a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003. He has
been a Non-Executive Director of News Corporation since 2002 and was an Executive
Director from 1996 untit 2002. He has been named President and Chief Executive
Officer of Hughes Electronics Corporation pending the completion of News Corporation's
acquisition of a 34% interest in Hughes and serves on the Boards of Gateway, inc. and
Colgate University. Mr. Carey previously served as Co-Chief Operating Officer of News
Corporation and as a Director and Co-Chief Operating Officer of Fox Entertainment Group
{(“FEG"). Mr. Carey has also held the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Fox Television, Director of Star Group Limited {*STAR"), Director of NDS Group plc
("NDS8") and Director of Gemstar-TV Guide International, inc. ("Gemstar”).

David DeVoe (age 56) Non-Executive Director

David DeVoe has been a Dirsctor of the Company since December 19894, Mr DeVioe has
been an Executive Director of News Corporation since October 1980; Senior Executive
Vice President of News Corporation since January 1996, Chisf Financial Officer and
Finance Director of News Corporation since October 1990 and Deputy Finance Director
from May 1985 to September 1990; Director of News America international ("NAI" since
January 1991; and a Director of STAR since July 1893. He has also been a Director of
FEG since 1991 and a Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since
August 1998. Mr DeVoe has been a Director of NDS since 1996 and a Director of
Gemstar since June 2001,

David Evans (age 63) indspencent Non-Executve Director

David Evans was appointed as a Director of the Company on 21 September 2001.
He is President and Chief Executive Officer of Crown Media Holdings, Inc. He was
previously President and Chief Executive Officer of Crown's predecessor, Hallmark
Entertainment Networks, from 1 March 1999, Prior to that he was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Tele-Communications International, Inc. (“TINTA™ from January
1988. He joined TINTA in September 1997 as its President and Chief Operating Officer,
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the company. Prior to joining TINTA, from July
19986, Mr Evans was Executive Vice President, News Corporation.

Allan Leighton (age 50) Independent Non-Executive Direcior

Allan Leighton was appointed as a Director of the Company on 15 October 1999. In March
1992, he joined ASDA Stores Limited as Group Marketing Director, in September 1396 he
was appointed Chief Executive and in November 1989 he was appointed President and
CEO of Wal-Mart Europe. He resigned all of these positions in September 2000.
Mr Leighton is Chairman of Wilson Connolly Holdings pic, B.H.S. Ltd, Lastminute.com pic,
Royal Mail Group and Canncns Group Ltd. He is Deputy Chairman of Leeds United pic
and a Non-Executive Director of Dyson Ltd and George Weston Limited.

James Murdoch (age 30) Non-Execulive Girector

James Murdoch was appointed as a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003. He
has been Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of STAR since May 2000. He is also
Executive Vice President of News Corporation and a member of News Corporation’s
Board of Directors and Executive Committee. Mr Murdoch serves on the Boards of NDS
and YankeeNets and the Board of Trustess of the Harvard Lampoon. Mr Murdoch
attended Harvard University.

Rupert Murdoch (age 72) Non-Executive Director

Rupert Murdoch has been a Director of the Company since 1990, when he founded
British Sky Broadcasting, and was appointed Chairman in June 1999. Mr Murdoch has
been a Director of News Limited in Australia since 1953: a Director of News International
plc in the UK since 1969; a Director of NAI in the US since 1873;"and Executive Director,
Managing Director and Chief Executive of News Corporation since 1879, Mr Murdoch
has also served as a Director of FEG and its predecessor companies since 1985,
Chairman since 1992 and Chief Executive Officer since 1995, In addition, he has been
a Director of STAR since 1993 and Gemstar since 2001.

Jacques Nasser (age 55) Independent Non-Exscuuve Direcior

Jacques Nasser was appointed as a Director of the Company on 8 November 2002 and
is a Senior Partner of One Equity Partners. the private equity business of Bank One
Corporation. In addition, he is Chairman of Polarcid Corporation, and he serves on the
International Advisory Board of Allianz A.G. He served as a Member of the Board of
Directors. and as President and Chief Executive Officer of Ford Motor Company from
1998 to 2001. He has received an honourary Doctorate of Technology and graduated in
Business from the Royal Institute of Melbourne. Because of his significant contributions
to the well being of humanity and to the country of Lebanon, he has received the Order
of the Cedar. In recognition of his work for Australian industry, as an adviser to
government. and for education in the area of technology. he was awarded an Order of
Australia and a Centenary Medal.

Gail Rebuck {age 51) Independeni Non-Execuine Diracior

Gail Rebuck was appointed as a Director of the Company on 8 November 2002. She is
Chairman and Chief Executive of The Random House Group Ltd. the UK's largest trade
publishing company. In 1982 she became a founder Director of Century Publishing.
Century merged with Hutchinson in 1885 and in 1988 Century Hutchinson was acquired
by Random House Inc. In 1991, Ms Rebuck was appointed Chairman and Chief
Executive of Random House UK. Ms Rebuck has been a Trustee of the Institute for Public
Palicy Research since 1993 and was for three years a member of the Government's
Creative Industries Task Force. She is on the Board of The Work Foundation. a member
of the Court of the University of Sussex and a member of the Council of the Royal College
of Art. Ms Rebuck was awarded a CBE in the 2000 New Year's Honours List.

Arthur Siskind {age 64) Non-Execuriva Director

Arthur Siskind has been a Director of the Company since June 1992. Mr Siskind has
been a Senior Executive Vice President of News Corporation since January 1936 and an
Executive and Group General Counse! of News Corporation since 1991. He was an
Executive Vice President of News Corporation from February 1891 until January 19986,
Mr Siskind has been a Director of NAI since 1991, a Director of STAR since 1983, a
Director of NDS since 1996 and Senior Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
a Director of FEG since August 1998. Mr Siskind has been a member of the Bar of the
State of New York since 1982.

Lord St John of Fawsley (age 74) Independent Non-Executive Director

Lord St John of Fawsley has been a Director of the Company since 1891, He is a non-
executive Director of Blackfriars Investments, of which he was previously Chairman and a
Director of Blue Lion Limited. He was a Director of the N.M. Rothschild Trust from 1990
to 1998. Lord St John is Chairman of the Royal Fine Art Commission Trust and was
Chairman of the Royal Fine Art Commission from 1985 to 2000. He is a member of the
Privy Council and holds the Order of Merit of the ltalian Republic. Lord St John has held
the offices of Minister of State for Education, Minister of State for the Arts, Leader of the
House of Commaens and Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster. He has also been Master
of Emmanuel College, Cambridge. He is a reguiar commentator on television and radio.

John Thornton (age 49) Independent Non-Execuiive Direcior

John Thornton has been a Director of the Company since 1934. He is Professor and
Director of Giobal Leadership at Tsinghua University in Beijing and a Director of the Ford
Motor Company, Intel Corporation and the Pacific Century Group, Inc. Mr Thornton is
Chairman of the Brookings Institution and a Director or Trustee of several educational
and philanthropic organisations. With effect from 1 July 2003, Mr Thornton retired as
President and Co-Chief Operating” Officer of the Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and as
member of its Board of Directdrs. Mr Thoraton attended Harvard College, Oxford University
and the Yale School of Management.

Lord Wilson of Dinton (age 60) indapendent Non-Executive Director
Lord Wilson was appointed as a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003.
He entered the Civil Service as an assistant principal in the Board of Trade in 1966. He
subsequently served in a number of departments including 12 years in the Department
of Energy where his responsibilities included nuclear power policy, the p\ﬂvatisation of
Britoil, personnel and finance. He headed the Economic Secretaniat in the Cabinet Office
under Mrs Thatcher from 1987 to 1990 and after two years in the Treasury was
appointed Permanent ‘Secretary of the Department of the Environment in 1992, He
became Permanent Under Secretary of the Home Office in 1994 and Secretary of the
Cabinet and Head of the Home Civil Service in January 1998. Since his retirement in
September 2002, he has been Master of Emmanuel College, Cambridge. He was made
a peer in November 2002.

Martin Pompadur and Leslie Hinton. both Non-Executive Directors, resigned from the
Board on 13 February 2003, and were replaced by Chase Carey and James Murdoch.

Alternate Directors

Rupert Murdoch, James Murdoch, David DeVoe. Arthur Siskind and Chase Carey have
appointed each of the others to act as their alternate Director and in addition have
appointed Leslie Hinton as their alternate Director.

Philip Bowman has appeinted Allan Leighton and David Evans as his alternate Directors.
David Evans has appointed Philip Bowman and Allan Leighton as his alternate Directors.
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Directors’ Report

Tne Directors present their Annual Report on the affairs of British Sky Broadcasting
Group pic ('BSkyB", "the Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings (together. “the
Group™. together with the Accounts and Auditors' Report for the year ended 30
June 2003.

tivities
1A7:e Chairman’s Statemnment on page 1 and the combined Chief Executive’s Statement
and Operating Financial Review on pages 4 to 12 report on the principal activities of
the Group. its financial and operating performance during the year and the future
development of the business.

Results and dividends

The profit on ordinary activities after taxation for the year ended 30 June 2003 was
£190.3 million {2002: loss of £1,382.6 million). On 5 May 1999 it was announced that
the Board had decided to suspend dividend payments to shareholders. Accordingly.
no dividend is proposed. ’

payment policy

The policy of the Group is to agree terms of payment with suppliers prior to entering into
a contractual relationship. In the absence of a specific agreement it is the policy of the
Group 10 pay suppliers on a monthly basis. The Group had 20 days' purchases
outstanding at 30 June 2003 (2002: 19 days) based on the total amount invoiced by
non-programme trade suppliers during the year ended 30 June 2003. Programme
creditors include significant balances which are not yet contractually due. In respect of
amounts both contractually due and invoiced, the outstanding number of days'
purchases is below 30 days (2002: below 30 days).

Share capitat

Details of changes in the share capital during the year are disclosed in note 23 to the
accounts. On 11 August 2003 the following companies, or their subsidiary undertakings,
held more than 3% of the Company’s share capital:

BSkyB Holdco Inc (a subsidiary of News COrporation).......c.cceoer i v, 35.40%

Corporate governance

Details concerning the Group’s arrangements relating to corporate governance and its
compliance with the Combined Code of Best Practice and the Best Practice Provisions
annexed to the Listing Rules of the London Stock Exchange are given on pages 24 and
25. The Report on Directors' Remuneration is on pages 26 to 31.

Charitablie and political contributions and community activities

In 2003, the Group realfised further developments to its corporate responsipility strategy.
This included understanding more fully the expectations of its stakeholders, including local
schools and national voiuntary organisations. These discussions enabled the Group to
draw up its first shared vision statement, sefting objectives far the business and defining
stakeholder expectations.

The Group's second Corporate Responsibility Review details the business activity
supporting its shared visions and provides further information on our community
initiatives (see www.sky.com).

The Group’s community activity has continued to focus on utilising our strengths as a
business to deliver a measurable and sustainable impact on the community, both at a
local and national level. This is achieved via the Group’s main community involvement
initiative, Reach for the Sky (see www.sky.com/rits). There are three initiatives within
Reach for the Sky. each consisting of a three-way partnership between the Group,
voluntary organisations and government departments.

- In 2003, the Group in the UK donated a total value of £2,145,000 (2002: £1.634,000)
to charities, of which £678.000 was in the form of cash {2002: £948,000), and the
remainder was in the form of services in kind.

- in 2003. 3,875 young people attended Reach for the Sky events at 186 locations within
the UK.

- In 2003, Reach for the Sky was a finalist in Business in the Community's Awards for
Excellence - “Cause-Refated Marketing Award.”

Political contributions of the Group in the UK during 2003 amounted to nil (2002: nil).

Directors

The Directors who served during the year are listed on page 22. David Evans, Lord St
John of Fawsley and Martin Stewart retire from the Board by rotation, and being eligible,
ofter themselves for re-glection. Mr Stewart’s contract of employment is subject to one
year's notice. Philip Bowman also retires from the Board by rotation but will not offer
himself for re-election.

Employment policies

The Directors’ interests in the Ordinary Shares and options of the Company are disclosed
within the Report on Directors' Remuneration on pages 26 to 31.

Equality of opportunity
The Group believes everyone should be given equal access to the same choices and
oppontunities in recruitment and employment. irrespective of their differences and needs.

The Group has a range of policies designed to ensure that it can meet this commitment,
These include respect for family and religious needs and reascnable adjustment and
communication support for disabled people. Applications are welcomed from a diverse
talent pool and the recruitment process is accessible to disabled people. In addition the
Group is working in partnership with Sabre employment {a specialist disability
employment group) to ensure appropriate suppont for the continuing employment of
disabled people. The Group is committed to promoting awareness of diversity through
training and working practices.

The Group is a goid card member of the Employers’ Forum on Disability and supports
both the Broadcasting and Creative Industries Network and the Cuitural Diversity
Network.

Health and safety

The health and safety of the Group's employees is a matter of major imponance.
Accordingly, it is the Group's policy to manage its activities so as to avoid causing any
unnecessary or unacceptable risk to the health and safety of its employees.

The Group's goal is to work towards continuous improvement in the management of our
health and safety risks. To this end. a review was undertaken in the first quanter of 2003
to ensure that the Group not only meets all applicable statutory requirements but also
demonstrates its commitment to employee well-being. The measures required to resolve
e action points highlighted in the review are currently underway.

Employee invelvement and communication

Itis the policy of the Group to develop employee involvement throughout the organisation
and 1o ensure that employees are aware of the financial and economic factors affecting
the Group. Commurnication meetings between management and employees' representatives
are typically held on a quarterly basis where matters of specific interest are discussed.
On-going consultation occurs covering a broad range of areas such as pension provision
and heaith and safety, and employees’ views are taken into consideration when making
decisions. The Group publishes two employee magazines covering a wide range of
employee issues, runs a comprehensive intranet system and regularty hosts roadshows,
conferences and forums for two-way communications., The Group's electronic mail
system ensures that staff are kept updated on relevant information and initiatives.

Training and development

Employees have the opportunity to participate in a range of training programmes in the
fields of technology, the broadcast industry, professionat skils and management and
personal development. The Company is represented at Board level within the Broadcast
Industry Sector Skills Council, Skiliset, which promotes training and development
opportunities across the industry.

Financial participation -

The Group operates a Sharesavé (discounted share purchase) scheme. a Company
pension scheme, and also & stakenolder pension scheme for the bensfit of all eligible
employees, .

Environmental responsibility
The Group recognises the importance of environmental responsibility and the complete
BSky8 Environmental Report can be found in the corpeorate section on the Company's
website. This report does not form part of the Annual Report. -2

L

Annual General Meeting P
The notice convening the Annual General Meeting to be held on 14 Noventer 2003
at 11.30am can be found in a separate notice accompanying the Annual Report,

Auditors .
On 1 August 2003, Deloitte & Touche. the Company’s auditors transferred their busines:
to Deloitte & Touche LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated under the Limited
Liability Partnerships Act 2000. The Company's consent has been given to treating the
appointment of Deloitte & Touche as extending to Deloitte & Touche LLP with efiect from
1 August 2003 under the provisions of section 28(5) of the Companies Act 1988,
A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's auditors will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board,
Cznd Gorriz,
Company Secretary
11 August 2003
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“Corporate Governance

BSkyB is committed to high standards of corporate governance and, except as noted
below. has complied throughout the year with the best practice provisions of Section 1
of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance {“the Code”) appended to the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority.

The Board

The Board currently comprises fifteen Directors, made up of two Executive Directors and
thineen Non-Executive Directors, eight of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Non-Executive Directors of the Company bring a wide range of
experience and expertise to the Company’s affairs and they carry significant weight in
the Board's decisions. Short biographies of each of the Directers are set out on page 22,
which also clearly identify those Directors who are. in the view of the Board. independent
within the meaning of the Code. In the previous year's Annual Report, the Board noted
that there was not a majority of independent Non-Executive Directors, as required by the
Code. and expressed its intention to remedy this situation. Following the appointments
of Gail Rebuck and Jacques Nasser at the Annual General Meeting on 8 November 2002
the Company has been compliant with the Code.

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and have been so
since the Company obtained its listing in 1994, In prior years the Board did not deem it
necessary to appoint a Senior Non-Executive Director and as such was not compliant
with the Code. However, in last year's Annuat Report the Board confirmed its commitment
to make an appointment and on 7 November 2002, Lord St John of Fawsley was appointed
as the Senior Non-Executive Director of the Company.

The Board is scheduled to meet at least six times a year to review appropriate strategic,
operational and financial matters as reguired. A schedule of items reserved for the full
Board’s approval is in place, which inciudes, inter alia, the approval of annual and interim
results, significant transactions, agreements or arrangements between the Group and
members of The News Corporation Limited group (*News Corporation”) and other
related parties, major capital expenditure and the yearly budget and business plan.

The Board has also delegated specific responsibilities to Board committees. notably the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees. Directors receive Board and
Committee papers several days in advance of Board and Committee mestings and also
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. In addition, the Board
members have access o external professional advice at the Company's expense.

Appointments of Independent Non-Executive Directors are for an initial term of three
years, subject to election by shareholders following appointment, subsequent re-election
by shareholders, and Companies Act provisions relating to the removal of Directors.
In addition, re-appointment for a further term is not automatic but may be made by
mutual agreement.

In previous years the Articles of Association of the Company permitted News Corporation
or a subsidiary of News Corporation 10 appeint a number of Directors dependent on its
shareholding in the Company. BSkyB Holdco, Inc. ("Holdco™), a subsidiary of News
Corporation, had the right to appoint five Directors to the Board. The Directors so
appointed were not subject to election by shareholders, nor were they required to retire
by rotation as required by the Code.

At the Company's Annual General Meeting held on 8 November 2002, resolutions were
put to the shareholders of the Company whareby new Articies of Association would be
adopted, canceliing News Corporation’s special right to appoint Directors to the Board
and the five Directors so appointed by News Corporation would be put forward for
appointment by sharehclders. These Directors would then be subject to the normal
retirement by rotation provisions that are applicable to all other Directors. These
resolutions were aiso conditional on another three Independent Non-Executive Directors
being appointed to the Board. The resolutions were passed by the shareholders of the
Company and became effective on 13 February 2003, when Lord Wilson of Dinton was
appointed as the eighth Independent Non-Executive Director of the Board.

Alt the Directors of the Company now comply with the requirement for Directors to retire
and offer themselves for re-election at least once every three years,

The Group Executive Committee generally meets on a weekly basis to allow prompt
decision making and discussion of relevant business issues. It is chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer and comprises the Chief Financial Officer and other senior executives
from within the Group.

Board Committees

The Articles of Association formerly contained certain rights for Holdco, dependent on
its shareholding in the Company, to appoint and remove members of any standing
Committee established by the Board. Holdco had the right to appoint two members to
any such Committee. These rights were also cancelled upon the adoption of the new
Articles of Association by a Special Resolution of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting. which was effective from 13 February 2003.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, on behalf of the Board, is responsible for recommending
to the Board the framework and policy for Executive Directors’ remuneration and
remuneration for any Executive of the Company earning a basic salary in excess
of £250,000 per annum. The Remuneration Committee has clearly defined terms of
reference, meets not less than once a year and takes advice from the Chief Executive
Officer and independent consultants as appropriate in carrying out its work, The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises five Non-Executive Directors, three of
whom are independent,

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by John Thornton, and its members are David
Evans. Jacques Nasser, Rupert Murdoch and David DeVoe. The Company notes that the
composition of the Remuneration Committee does not comptly with the Code. The Board
considers that Messrs Murdoch and DeVoe, along with the other members of the
Committee, have provided a valuable contribution to the Remuneration Committee, and
believes that they will continue to do so in the future. Accordingly. the Company does not
propose to alter the current membership of the Remuneration Committee.

The Board also notes that the terms of the Executive Directors’ service contracts do
not comply with the Code and this is more specifically discussed within the Report on
Directors’ Remuneration which can be found on pages 26 to 31. in accordance with
the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, the Report on Directors’
Remuneration will be put forward for an advisory shareholder vote.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which consists exclusively of Non-Executive Directors, has clearly
defined terms of reference as laid out by the Board. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Phifip Bowman and its members are Aflan Leighton, Gail Rebuck, David DeVoe and
Arthur Siskind. It meets not fewer than four times a year to review all significant
judgements made in the preparation of the quarterty. half yearly and annual financial
results before they are submitted to the Board. [t reviews with the external auditors the
nature, scope and cost of their work, discusses with them the results thereof, reviews
the audit plans and findings of the Group's internal audit function and any related party
transactions entered into by the Group. The Audit Committee has the power to seek
external advice as and when required.

Nomination Committee

On 17 September 2002, the Company established a Nomination Committee of the
Board foliowing the Board's confirmation in the previous year's Annual Report that it
intended to establish a Nomination Committee. On 17 September 2003, the Company
appointed Lord St John of Fawsiey and John Thornton as the Committee members,
Since there are only two members there is no Chairman. During the year Jacgues
Nasser. Gail Rebuck, Lord Wilson of Dinton, James Murdoch and Chase Carey were all
nominated by the Nomination Committee for appointment to the Board.

The Company has from time to time engaged executive search consultants to assist with
the recruitment of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Appointment of Directors
Jacgues Nasser and Gail Rebuck were appointed to the Board on 8 November 2002.

Lord Witson of Dinton was appb’rn@d to the Board on 13 February 2003.

< Y
Martin Pompadur and Leslie Hinton resighed from the Board on 13 February 2003 and
were replaced by Chase Carey and James Murdoch.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company is keen to maintain a dialogue with institutional shareholders in order to
ensure that the objectives of both the Company and the shareholders are understood.
A programme of meetings with institutional shareholders, fund managera and analysts
takes place each year. The Company also makes presentations to analystsrand fund
managers following the half year and full year results of the Company. P

a

The Board views the ‘Annual General Meeting as an opportunity to communicate
with private investors and sets aside time at these meetings for shareholders to ask
questions of the Board. All members of the Board are encouraged to attend the meeting.
The Chairman provides a brief resume of the Company's activities for the previous year
to the shareholders.

The Company, in accordance with the Code. announces the number of proxy votes cast
on resolutions at the Annual General Meeting.
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Corporate Governance

continued

Directors’ responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Directors are set out on page 31.

internal controf

The Directors have overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the Group's
sysiems of internal control and risk management and for reviewing their eflectiveness.
These systems are designed to manage, and where possible eliminate, the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or 10ss. An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group has been established. in accordance
with the guidance of the Turnbull Committee on internal control issued in September
1999. This process has been in place for the whole of the year ended 30 June 2003 and
up to the date the financial statements were approved.

The Audit Committee. on behalf of the Board. considers the effectiveness of the
operation of the Group's systems of internal control and risk management aunng the
year and this review has been carried out for the year ended 30 June 2003 and up to
the date the financial statements were approved. This review relates to the Company
and its subsidiaries and does not extend to joint ventures. The Audit Committee meets
on at least a quarterly basis with the Group's internal audit team and the external
auditors.

There is @ comprehensive budgeting process and the annual budget. which is regularly
reviewed and updated, is approved by the Board. Risk assessment and evaiuation take
place as an integral pant of this process. Performance is monitored against budgst
through weekly and monthly reporting cycles. Monthly reports on performance are
provided to the Board and the Group reports to shareholders each quarter.

Each area of the business carries out risk assessments of its operations and ensures that
the key risks are addressed. A Risk Management Committee, chaired by the Chief
Financial Officer and comprising senior executives, reviews the management of risks in
alt areas of the business on a cyclical basis. The results of the Risk Management
Committee's review are integral to the budgeting and forecasting process and are
integrated into the internal audit planning.

The internal audit team provides objective assurance as to the effectiveness of the
Group's systems of internal control and risk management to the Group's operating
management and to the Audit Committee.

Use of external auditors

The Group has a policy on the provision by the external auditors of audit and non-audit

services, which categorises such services between:

- those services which the auditors are prohibited from providing;

- those services which are acceptable for the auditors to provide and the provision
of which has been pre-approved by the Audit Committee: and

- those services for which the specific approval of the Audit Committee is required
before the auditors are permitted 10 provide the service.

The policy defines the types of services faling under each category and sets out the
criteria which need to be met and the internal approval mechanisms required 1o be
completed prior to any engagement. An analysis of all services provided by the external
auditors is reviewed by the Audit Committee at each meeting.

For the vear ended 30 June 2003, the Audit Committee has discussed the matter of
audit independence with Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Group's external auditors, and has
received and reviewed confirmation in writing that, in Deloitte & Touche LLP's
professional judgement, Deloitte & Touche LLP is independent within the meaning of
regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity of the audit engagement
partner and audit staff is not impaired.
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~Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Remuneration Committee
John Thornton (Chairman), David Evans, Jacques Nasser, Rupert Murdoch and
David DeVoe.

The Remuneration Committee's (“the Committee's”) terms of reference are principally
concerned with the remuneration (in all its forms) of main Board Directors and other senior
executives of the Group with a basic salary of at least £250,000 per annum (*Senior
Executives”). other than key production personnel or on-air talent. The Committee meets
not less than once a year, has access to information and advice provided from external
sources and from sources within the Group, and ensures that:

a) the salary, benefits and pension arrangements of the Executive Directors and Senior
Executives are competitive. but fair;

b) awards under the Company's Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Option
Schemes {“the Executive Schemes"), Additional Executive Bonus Scheme, Long-
Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP") and Equity Bonus Plan (“EBP") are consistent with the
Group's overall performance and provide an additional ingentive to management; and

) there is an objective and independent assessment of benefits granted to Executive
Directors and Senior Executives.

Advisors to the Committee

The Group uses the services of Deloitte & Touche LLP Executive Compensation Consulting,
who replaced Arthur Andersen on 1 August 2002, in providing advice on remuneration
matters of the Committee. Deloitte & Touche LLP has been appointed by the Group and
provide advice as required by the Committee. The Committee also consuits with the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Thay are invited to aftend meetings of the
Committee, although no Director participates in discussions concerning his own
remuneration. Deloitte & Touche LLP also acts as the Group's auditors, and provide other
services 1o the Group as detailed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Compliance

The Auditors’ Report set out on page 31 confirms that the scope of their work covers
the amounts disclosed relating to the emoluments, share options, LTIP and EBP
interests and pension benefits of the Directors contained in sections 13 to 18 of
this report in accordance with the Companies Act. These sections are identified as
“audited” below.

1. Remuneration policy for the Executive Directors and

Senior Executives

The Committee operates a policy of competitive remuneration packages to attract,
retain and motivate Executive Directors and Senior Executives of the highest calibre.
The Committee keeps its remuneration policies under review in the light of Company
and market developments.

Since fiotation, remuneration has played an important part in motivating management
in the delivery of outstanding performance for shareholders. At the outset there was a
clear commitment to provide outstanding rewards to Executive Directors and Senior
Executives only if shareholders had also benefited. incentives have therefore been
tailored to support the delivery of key corporate objectives. The LTIP was introduced
in conjunction with the launch of the digital platform and was designed to reward
executives only if tough business targets were exceeded and this resuited in superior
returns for shareholders. Historically, therefore, there has been a strong link between
corporate performance and individual reward, and this continues to be a key focus
through the operation of the LTIP and the EBP, which was introduced in 2002.

A key part of this policy has been to structure rewards such that a high proportion
of Executive Directors’ and Senior Executives’ total compensation is paid in BSkyB
shares. Awards under incentive plans continue to be subject to the achievement of
tough targets based on out-performance of comparator groups. as well as commercial
targets such as build-up, yield and retention of the subscriber base, profitability and
cash flow generation.

The emphasis continues to be on rewards linked to performance and BSkyB shares,
rather than the provision of long-term security through pensions, and therefore pension
opportunities of Executive Directors and Senior Executives comprise only a defined
contribution scheme. in which the Group’s contributions are limited to 8% of basic
salary. No other elements of remuneration are pensionable.

The Group's remuneration policy also reflects the dynamic, competitive and entrepreneurial
markets in which the Group operates, and recognises and rewards key talent throughout
the organisation using BSkyB shares. In addition to rewarding Executive Directors and
Senior Executives, the Group’s policy is to extend share ownership opportunities to all
employees by the widespread grant of share options under the Executive Schemes, through
the “Millennium Grant”, and the operation of the Sharesave scheme (see section 10).

Executive Directors are allowed to take up external appointments as non-gxecutive
directors and the Directors retain any payments in respect of these appointments.

2. Total remuneration ~ fixed versus variable pay

Remuneration for Executive Directors and Senior Executives consists of basic salary,
performance-related bonuses, share incentive schemes and benefits including defined
contribution pensions, life assurance, medical insurance and company cars, or
company car allowances. The remuneration package is significantly weighted towards

variable performance-related incentive arrangements. This policy ensures that a
significant proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and Senior
Executives is aligned with corporate performance, generating a strong alignment of
management'’s interests with those of shareholders.

For both Executive Directors, the performance element of total remuneration is currently
targeted at over 70%. it is intended that this balance should continue.

3. Basic salary

The basic salary for each Executive Director and Senior Executive is determined by
the Committee taking account of the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer
(other than in respect of his own salary), and information provided from external sources
relative to the industry sector in which the Company operates.

4. Senior management bonus scheme

Executive Directors and Senior Executives participate in a bonus scheme under which
awards are made to participants at the discretion of the Committee. The level of
award is dependent on both personal performance during the relevant financial year and the
performance of the Group through the achievement of commercial and strategic objectives.

5. Pension benefits

The Group provides pensions to eligible employees through the BSkyB Pension Plan
which is a defined contribution plan. Employees may contribute up t0 4% of basic salary
into the scheme each year and the Group matches this up to a maximum of 8% of basic
salary. Contributions into the approved plan are subject to Inland Revenue limits, The
Group does not currently operate a Supplementary Pension Scheme in excess of the
Inland Revenue earnings cap.

During the year the Company reviewed the operation of its pension arrangements for
Executive Directors and Senior Executives whose Pension Plan contributions are
restricted due to Inland Revenue limits. For these Executives, in the first instance,
employee contributions are reduced and where employer contributions need to be
restricted, a cash supplement is paid to the individual equal to the shortfall in the 8%
employer contribution rate.

During the year, a one-off payment was made to Tony Ball in recognition of the historical
shortfall in his pension arrangements. This sum was equal to the difference between the
contributions as limited by the Inland Revenue cap and the 8% of pensionable salary
since he joined the BSkyB Pension Plan,

6. Performance graph

The following graph shows the Company's performance measured by total shareholder
return ("TSR") for the five years to 30 June 2003, compared with the TSR of the
FTSE 100 companies over the same period. Total Shareholder Return is defined as
share price growth plus reinvested dividends. The FTSE 100 has been selected for this
comparison because this is the principal index in which the Company’s shares are listed.
The performanee of the FTSE 350 Madia and Entertainment index over the same period
is also shown for comparative purposes.

Total shareholder return for the period 1 July 1998 to 30 June 2003

%
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= BSkvB = FTSE 100 Index = FTSE 350 Media and Entertainment index

7. Long-Term Incentive Pfan

The Company operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan for Executive Directors and Senior
Executives. An award under the existing LTIP comprised a retention element Core
Award (which makes up 5% of the award) and a Performance Award (which makes up
95% of the award). The Core Award vests dependent on continued service with the
Group for a specified period and is not subject to the performance conditions. It is
intended that no future Core Awards will be made under the LTIP. The Performance
Award vests, in full or in part, dependent on the satisfaction of speacified performance
targets. Awards are not transferable or pensionable and are made over a number of
shares in the Company, determined by the Committee. Awards may be in a variety of
forms, including grants of shares, nil-priced options or market-value options with a cash
bonus, all of which would have the same value to the participant.

Measurements of the extent to which performance targets have been met are reviewed
by the Committee at the date of vesting of each award, taking account of independent
advice as necessary.
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- Report on Directors’ Remuneration

continued

Awards may be made to any employee or full time Director of the Group at the
discretion of the Committee. During the year, awards under the plan were made to Tony
Ball and Martin Stewart and other key Senior Executives. Further information on the
awards 1o the Executive Directors can be found in Section 16 of this report.

Qutstanding awards under the LTIP take the form of a market value option with a cash
bonus equal 1o the lower of exercise price and the share price at the date of exercise
with the exception of shares awarded as part of an agreement to meet the employer's
National Insurance obligations. which do not attract a cash bonus. Where the market
price of a share at the date of vesting is below the exercise price. awards in this form
have been treated as having lapsed and participants have been eligible 1o receive
shares for no consideration, equal to the value of their vested award.

2002 awards

Performance maasures for the 2002 LTIP focus on rewarding performance which results
in maximised returns 1o sharehciders. For the award made in 2002 the Committee
determined that the performance targets should be based on a comparison of the
Company’s relative total shareholder return performance against both the FTSE 100
and the international media and telecommunications sector. The awards only vest in full
for outstanding performance against both of these comparator groups. Total shareholder
return has been selected as the target as it is a clear indicator of the value created for
shareholders, and is a widely accepted measure of performance.

The selected comparator companies from the international media and
telecommunications sector were as follows: Cariton Communications; EMAP; Granada;
MediaSet; ntl; RTL; SMG: Telewest Communications; Viacom. Vivendi Universal
Walt Disney.

The table below sets out the proportion of the award that vests according to
performance against the international media and telecommunications sector
comparator group and the FTSE 100.

Percentage of award that vests

Company position
against the FTSE 100

Company position against international Upper Upper
media and telecommunications Median quartile  decile or
sector comparator group or above or above orabove
1st out of 12 70% 80% 100% 100%
2nd out of 12 60% 70% 35% 100%
3rd out of 12 50% 85% 80% 90%
4th out of 12 45% 55% 65% 75%
5th out of 12 40% 50% 60% 70%
6th out of 12 30% 40% 50% 60%
7th ar lower out of 12 (Core Award) 5% 5% 5% 5%

Up to half of the award may vest two years after grant, subject to the achievement of the
periormance conditions at that date, with the remaining 50% and any unvested portion
becoming eligible for vesting after three years, subject to the achievement of the
performance conditions at that date.

2001 awards

50% of the award granted in November 2001 vested in full on 30 June 2003 as to 400,000
shares (Tony Ball) and 200,000 shares (Martin Stewart). The additional options which were
granted in respect of the National Insurance enhancement. 54,000 (Tony Ball) and
27,000 (Martin Stewant), fall away if exercised when the market price is below the
exercise price. This is as a resuit of the Company being placed second against the media
comparator group in terms of total shareholder retumn for the period November 2001 to
June 2003, and for the achievement of the commercial targets at 30 June 2003 using a
number of key business performance measures based on DTH churn rate, average
revenue per user. operating cash flow margin, gross margin, profit before tax and total DTH
subscribers. The media comparator companies for the total shareholder return
performance measure were: Cariton Communications; Granada: MediaSet; ntl: RTL; SMG;
Telewest Communications; and Vivendi Universal. The Company's share price on this date
was £6.72, and the total market value of the award which vested was £4.0 million. At 30
June 2003, Tony Ball and Martin Stewart had not exercised their rights to receive these
shares. The vesting date for this award was amended during the year from an original
vesting date of 31 July 2003 to 30 June 2003, in order to align the vesting date with the
Company's financial year. The amendment 10 the vesting date did not affect the proportion
of the award that vested during the year.

The unvested portion of the award made in 2001 will vest on 30 June 2004 subject to the
achievement of performance conditions at that date based on a combination of the
Company's performance against stretching targets established for a range of commercial
measures together with a comparison of the Company'’s relative totai sharehalder return
performance against the international media and telecommunications sector. The awards
only vest in full for outstanding performance against both performance measures. The
selected comparator companies from the international media and telecommunications
sector are as foliows: Cartton Communications; Granada: MediaSet; nth: RTL; SMG;
Telewest Communications; Vivendi Universal.

The table below sets out the proportion of the award that could potentially vest
according to performance against the international media and telecommunications
sector comparator graup. However, this level of vesting is only achigvable if the
Company also meets the stretching commercial targets in full.

Company position against international
media and telecommunications
sector comparator group

1st or 2nd out of 9@

Maximum percentage of award
that may vest if commercial
measures targets are met in full

100%
3rd or 4th out of 9 95%
5th or 6th out of @ 75%
7th or lower out of 8 (Core Award) 50%

If threshold commercial targets are not met then vesting for the first or second highest
TSR would reduce to below 25%. The vesting at other positions against the comparator
group (3rd or 4th highest TSR, 5th or 6th highest TSR, 7th highest or lower) would also
reduce, to 12%, 9% and 5% (Core Award) respectively.

The commercial targets are based on stretch measures in the following areas: DTH
churn rate, average revenue per user, operating cash flow margin, gross margin, profit
before tax and total DTH subscribers. Performance at less than 85% of these stretching
targets results in the threshold ievel, which would result in no vesting in respect of the
commercial measures.

2000 Award

50% of the awards granted in Novemnber 2000 vested in full on 3 November 2002 as
to 400.000 shares (Tony Ball) and 200.000 shares (Martin Stewart). The additionat
options which were granted in respect of the National Insurance enhancement, 54,000
(Tony Ball) and 27,000 (Martin Stewart), fall away if exercised when the market price is
below the exercise price. This is as a resuit of the Company being placed first against
the media comparator group in terms of total shareholder return for the period
November 2000 to November 2002, and for the achievement of the commercial targets
at 3 November 2002 using a number of key business performance measures based on
DTH churn rate, average revenue per user, operating cash flow margin, gross margin,
profit before tax and total DTH subscribers. The media comparator companies for the
total shareholder return performance measure were: Carlton Communications;
Granada; MediaSet; ntl; RTL; SMG; Telewest Communications: and Vivendi Universal,
The Company’s share price on 3 November 2002 was £5.75, and the total market value
of the award which vested was £3.5 million. At 30 June 2003, Tony Ball and Martin
Stewart had not exercised their rights to receive these shares.

The balance of the awards granted in November 2000 vested in full on 30 June 2003
as to 400,000 shares (Tony Ball) and 200,000 shares (Martin Stewart). The additional
options which were granted in respect of the National insurance enhancement, 54,000
(Tony Ball) and 27,000 {Martin Stewart). fall away if exercised when the market price is
below the exercise price. This is as a result of the Company being placed first against
the media comparator group in terms of total shareholder return for the period
November 2000 to June 2003, and for the achievement of the commercial targets at
30 June 2003 using a number of key business performance measures based on DTH
churn rate, average revenue per user, operating cash flow margin, gress margin, profit
before tax and total DTH subsstibers. The media comparator companies for the total
shareholder return performance measure were: Cariton Communications; Granada;
MediaSet; ntl: RTL; SMG: Telewest Communications; and Vivendi Universal. The
Company’s share price on 30 June 2003 was £6.72, and the total market value of the
award which vested was £4.0 million. At:30 June 2003, Tony Ball and Martin Stewart
had not exercised their rights to receive these shares. The vesting date for this award
was amended during the year from an original vesting date of 3 November 2003 to 30
June 2003, in order to align the vesting date with the Company’s financial year. Based
on current information, the amendment to the vesting date is not expegted to have
affected the proportion of the award that vested during the year. .

Other broadly similar arrangements are operated for certain senior managerrent not
participating in the LTIP under the terms of a Key Contriputor Plan {(*KCP"). Shares used
to satisfy KCP awards are acquired by the Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP")
in the market.

8. Equity Bonus Plan

2002 Awards

During the year the Company introduced an Equity Bonus Plan for Executive Directors
and Senjor Executives. This plan rewards performance against key commercial measures
over the financial year, with stretching targets derived from the Group's business pian.
Awards under the plan are made in the form of BSkyB shares, subject to performance
achieved in the financial year, The awards of these shares are deferred in equal amounts
for a further one and two years, subject to continuing employment.

At 30 June 2003, the commercial measures for the awards made in August 2002
were achieved in full. The awards granted to Tony Ball and Martin Stewart will vest in equal
amounts subject to their remaining in continued employment with the Group at 31 July
2004 and 31 July 2005.

EBP awards may be made to any employee or full time Director of the Group at the
discretion of the Committee. Shares used to satisfy these awards are acquired by the
ESOP in the market.
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Report on Directors’ Remuneration

continued

9. Additional Executive Bonus Scheme

The Company has operated an Additional Executive Bonus Scheme in which

benefictaries who participate have the right 1o receive the growth in value on a number

of notional shares. No awards have been made under this scheme since 1989 when

awards were made to Tony Ball on his commencement of employment as CEQ. The

vesting of these awards was subject to one of the following targets:

a) “Performance Target": Earnings per share ("EPS") growth over three years greater
than the percentage increase in RP! over the period: or the

b) "Alternative Performance Target™ Increase in cperating income over three years
greater than the percentage increase in RPI plus 5% over the period. Under this
target the costs of digital investment may be added back to the cperating income
figure.

These rights were deemed to vest on 12 August 2002, following the achievement of the
Alternative Performance Target. These awards must be exercised by 12 August 2006.

On exercise, the Group will pay a cash sum equal to accrued gains on the notional
shares, subject to deduction of any tax. Accrued gains will be calculated by reference
to the difference between the middie market price of the shares at the date of exercise
and the price at which the notional shares were granted. Alternatively, the Company
may elect to transfer to the holders shares of equal value to the accrued gains, in
satisfaction of the Group's obligation to pay any accrued gains.

10. Share Option Schemes
The Company operates the Executive Schemes and a Sharesave Scheme.

Executive Schemes

With the exception of ad hoc awards made to certain individuals on hiring, grants under
the Executive Schemes have been made, and continue to be made, on an annual basis.
Executive Directors who participate in the LTIP and EBP do not participate in the
Executive Schemes annual options award. No options were granted to any of the
Executive Directors under the Executive Schemes during the year.

The Company follows a policy of granting options to eligible employees linked to salary.
This is then subject to approval by the department heads who may recommend that the
individual receives an additional allocation for exceptional performance. There is no fimit
on the number of share options that may be granted to an individual (other than for the
purposes of granting Inland Revenue approved options), however, any proposal to
make a one-off grant of share options over four times salary would require the prior
approval of the Remuneration Committee (irespective of the employee’s level of salary).
No such grant has been made to date.

The performance conditions for option awards granted before August 2002 were based
on key strategic measures for the Group, including subscriber growth measures, profit
before tax and EPS targets.

For awards made during the year ended 30 June 2003, the performance target was
based on EPS. The use of EPS as a performance measure for the awards aligns the
interests of employees with shareholders. Growth in EPS will have to exceed RPI plus
3% per annum in order for awards to vest. Given that EPS was negative at the date of
grant, growth is to be measured from the actual EPS achieved for the year to
30 June 2003.

Measurements of the extent to which performance targets have been met are
reviewed by the Committee at the date of vesting of each award, taking
account of independent advice as necessary.

In August 1993, options over 600,000 shares were granted to Tony Ball. These became

exercisable during the year. The vesting of these options was subject to the foliowing

performance targets:

a) “Performance Target": EPS growth over three years greater than the percentage
increase in RPI over the period; or the

b) “Alternative Performance Target™: increase in operating income over three years
greater than the percentage increase in RPI plus 5% over the pericd. Under this target
the costs of digital investment may be added back to the operating income figure.

These rights were deemed to vest on 12 August 2002, following the satisfaction of the
Alternative Performance Target. The share price on this date was below the exercise
price of £5.83.

In June 2002 options over 800,000 shares were granted to Tony Ball at an exercise
price of £7.35 as part of the arrangements agreed on the renewal of his service
contract. The performance target attaching to these options is-based on the
achievement of commercial measures relating to DTH subscriber number targets. This
aligns the performance measure for this award with current business strategy.

Following approval by shareholders. at the 2000 AGM, options granted after November
2000 may be exercised over a phased period of years, provided that, in normal
circumstances, no part of an option will be capable of exercise earlier than one year
from the date of grant. Awards made during the year ended 30 June 2003 become
capable of vesting over a period of four years, with one third of the award capable of
vesting annually in each of years two, three and four, subject to the achievement of the
performance target.

In accordance with paragraph 2 of Schedule A to the Combined Code. the options that
were granted to the Chief Executive Officer in June 2002 will normally be capable of
exercise three years from the date of grant.

In accordance with an agreement with the inland Revenue, the Group can, with the
consent of the employee, pass on to the employee the cost of employers’ National
Insurance Contributions on the exercise of share options granted to UK employees
under the Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme. In order 1o compensate
employees for this extra cost. additional options have been granted under the
Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme to ensure that the employees, as far as
possible, are no worse off than if the National Insurance cost was not passed to them.

Miltennium award

In addition to the awards set out above. in December 2000 the Company made an
award over 500 shares to all employees who had not been granted options or awards
under the LTIP or the Executive Schemes in that year. These awards were made under
the Approved Executive Share Option Scheme and become exercisable three years
from the date of grant. There are no performance conditions attached to this award.

Sharesave Scheme

The Sharesave Scheme is open to all employess, including Executive Diractors. Opticns
are normally exercisable after either three, five or seven years from the date of grant.
The price at which options are offered is not less than 80% of the middle-market price
on the dealing day immediately preceding the date of invitation. It is the policy of the
Group to make an invitation for the employees 10 participate in the scheme following
the announcement of the end of year results.

11. Service contracts

Tony Ball has an employment contract with the Company which was deemed to
commence on 2 June 1999 and which expires on 31 May 2004. The contract can be
terminated by the Company subject to the payment of two years' salary, bonus and
benefits or, if the contract is not extended at expiry, of one year's salary, bonus and benefits.
The Cormmittee is aware that this notice period is not consistent with the provisions of the
Combined Code and, for this reason. the Committee considered very carefully what was
in the Company's interest. Taking into account the very competitive nature of the media
industry for top executives and the need for the Group to have access to the most able
management, the Committee concluded that this contract was in the interests of the
shareholders. Tony Ball's remuneration consists of a base salary of £762,134, plus an
annual cost of living provision and an annual bonus based on performance criteria to be
agreed by the Committee but to be no less than £500,000 annually. Tony Ball is aiso
entitied to other benefits, namely pension benefits, company car, Iife assurance equal to
four times base salary and medical insurance. He also participates in the LTIP, EBR,
Additional Executive Bonus Scheme and Executive Schemes,

Martin Stewart has an employment contract with the Company which was deemed to
commence on 1 December 1998 and shall continue uniess, or until, terminated by
either party giving to the other not less than 12 months' notice in writing. Martin
Stewart's remuneration consists of a base salary of £400,000 per annum and an annual
discreticnary bonus to be agreed by the Committee. He is also entitied 1o other
benefits, namely pension benefits, company car, life assurance equal to four times base
salary and medical insurance. He also participates in the LTIP and EBP.
~.

12. Non-Executive Directors™

The basic fees payable to the Non-Executive Birectors are set by the Board of Directors and
are currently £36,750 each per annum. It is intended that in future these will be increased
on an annual basis by 5% or RPI. whichever is the greater, unless the Board determines
otherwise, The Non-Executive Directors are paid an additional £5.000 per annum each, for
membership of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nemination Committee. The Chaimman of the Audit Commitiee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee each receive an additional £5,000 per annum. Each agependent
Non-Executive Director is engaged by the Company for an initial term of thrt&ears, at

which time the individual and the Board will both review whether or not the Independent .

Non-Executive Director should continue in that position. Prior to the Novemnber 2002AGM,
only Independent Directors received fees.
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Report on Directors’ Remuneration

continued

13. Directors’ emoluments {audited)

The emoluments of the Directors for the year are shown below:

Total Total
Total emoluments Total emoluments
emoluments including  emoluments including
Salary Bonus betore pensions before pensions
and fees scheme Benefits pensions Pensions 2003 pensions Pensions 2002
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ e N
Executive
Tony Ball 762,134 1,500,000 41.436 2,303,570 156,167 2,459,737 2.020,723 28.620 2.049,343
Martin Stewart 400,000 500,000 24,750 924,750 31,686 956,436 687,169 26,348 713517
Non-Executive
Rupert Murdoch 17.741 - - 17.741 - 17,741 - - -
Philip Bowman 46,750 - - 46,750 - 46,750 45,000 - 45,000
Chase Carey (i) 13,946 - - 13.946 - 13,946 - - -
David DeVoe 17.741 - - 17,741 - 17,741 - - : -
David Evans 39,994 - - 39.994 - 39.994 27,057 - 27,057
Allan Leighton 41,750 - - 41,750 - 41,750 39.698 - 39.698
James Murdoch (i} 13,946 - - 13.946 - 13.846 -~ - -
Jacques Nasser (iii) 26,923 - - 26,923 - 26,923 - - -
Gail Rebuck (iv) 25,596 - - 25,596 - 25,596 - - -
Arthur Siskind 15,843 - - 15,843 - 15,843 - - -
Lord St. John of Fawsley 40,673 - - 40,673 - 40,673 35.000 - 35.000
John Thornton 53,744 - - 53,744 - 53,744 49,522 - 49,522
Lord Wilson of Dinton (v) 13,946 - - 13,946 - 13,946 - - -
Les Hinton {vi) - - - - - - - - _
Martin Pompadur (vii) - - - - - - - - -
Total emoluments 1.530,727 2,000.000 66,186 3,586,913 187,853 3,784,766 2,804,169 54.968 2,958,137
{) Chase Carey was appointed a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003.
(iiy James Murdoch was appointed a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003.
{ify Jacques Nasser was appointed a Director of the Compary on 8 November 2002.
{iv) Gail Rebuck was appointed a Director of the Company on 8 November 2002,
(v} Lord Wilson of Dinton was appointed a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003, ’
(vi) Les Hinton resigned as a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003.
{vii Mantin Pompadur resigned as a Director of the Company on 13 February 2003.
14, Executive bonuses (audited)
The amounts received by the Directors under bonus schemes for the year are shown below:
Additional Senior
executive management
bonus bonus )
scheme (i) scheme (i) Total
~. £ £ £
Executive ¢
Tony Ball ! - 1,500,000 1,500.000
Martin Stewart ’ - 500,000  500.000

i} Additional Executive Bonus Scheme

Tony Balt has rights over 600,000 notional shares which became exercisable during the year. The notional shares have an exercise price of £5.35 but the gain on exercise is limited
to a maximum of 48 pence per notional share. These rights have not been exercised. The performance measures in relation to this award are set out in Section 9. ..
During the year ended 30 June 2003 no shares (notional or actual) have been awarded or exercised under this scheme.

il} Senior Management Bonus Scheme .
The amounts shown above are those which have been approved by the Committee for the year ended 30 June 2003,

15. Pension {audited)
The amounts received by the Directors under pension arrangements are detailed below.

Tony Bali received a one-off payment of £113,883 (see section 5) and a further payment of £10,421 in relation to the shorttall in his pension arrangements. Employer contributions
of £31.863 were paid into the BSkyB Pension Plan.

Martin Stewart received a further payment of £4,213 {see section 5) in relation to the shortfall in his pension arrangements. Employer contributions of £27,473 were paid into the
BSkyB Pension Plan.
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“Report on Directors’ Remuneration

continued

16. LTIP (audited)

Details of outstanding awards receivable under the LTIP are shown below:

Number of shares under award

At Granted Exercised At Market price Date
30 June during the during the 30 June Exercise at date from which Expiry
2002 year year 2003 price  of exercise  exercisable date

Name of Directors

Tony Ball 454,000 () - - 454,000 £10.04 n/a 03.11.02 03.11.10
454,000 {j) - - 454,000 £10.04 na 30.08.03 03.11.10
454.000 {i - - 454,000 £8.30 n/a 30.06.03 21111
454,000 (i) - - 454,000 £8.30 n/a 30.06.04 21.11.11
~  227.110 (jii) - 227,110 £5.55 n/a 31.07.04 31.07.12
- 227,110 (il - 227,110 £5.55 n/a 31.07.05 31.07.12
- 11.468 (i) - 11.466 £5.60 va 31.07.04 31.07.12
- 11,466 (i) - 11,466 £5.60 n/a 31.07.05 31.07.12
Martin Stewart 227,000 () -~ - 227,000 £10.04 na 03.11.02 03.11.10
227.000 (i) - - 227,000 £10.04 n/a 30.06.03 03.11.10
227,000 () - - 227,000 £8.30 n/a 30.06.03 2111119
227,000 (i) - - 227.000 £8.30 n/a 30.06.04 211111
- 113.565 i) - 113,555 £5.55 n/a 31.07.04 31.07.12
- 113,558 (iii) - 113,555 £5.55 na 31.07.05 31.07.12
- 5.733 {iii) - 5.733 £5.60 n/a 31.07.04 31.07.12
- 5,733 (i) - 5,733 £5.60 n/a 31.07.05 31.07.12

Awards under the LTIP take the form of a market value option with a cash bonus equal to the lower of the exercise price and the share price at the date of exercise, with the exception .
of shares awarded as part of an agreement to meet the employer's National Insurance obligations, which do not attract a cash bonus. !

Notes:
() These awards vested during the year. The performance conditions in relation to these awards are set out in Section 7.

(i) These awards will vest subject to meeting performance conditions on 30 June 2004. The vesting date for this award was amended during the year from an original vesting date
of 31 July 2004. in order to align the vesting date with the Company's financial year.

{iiy In August 2002 awards were granted over performance periods ending in July 2004 and July 2005. The performance conditions in relation to these awards are set out in Section 7.

17. Equity Bonus Plan (audited) ¥

Number of shares under award

At Granted Exercised At Market price Date
30 June during the during the 30 June Exercise at date from which Expiry
2002 Year Year 2003 price {j of exercise exercisable date
Name of Directors .
Tony Ball - 52,000 - 52.000 na n/a 31.07.04 31.07.12 :
- 52.000 - 52,000 n/a n/a 31.07.05 31.07.12 :
Martin Stewart - 26.000 - 26,000 \\ n/a n/a 31.07.04 31.07.12 :
- 26,000 - 26,000 n/a n/a 31.07.05 31.07.12 { ,
A
Noig: ) :
(i) Awards under the Equity Bonus Plan (“EBP”) take the form of a contingent right to acquire existing BSkyB shares at the vesting date, for nil consideration. ¢
The performance conditions applicable to the awards under the EBP were measured at 30 June 2003. The plan will deliver the shares in equal measures at 31 July 2004 and 31 July 2005. f
18. Executive share options (audited) Ny T
Details of ail outstanding options held under the Executive Schemes and Sharesave Scheme are shown below: " ’
Number of options
At Granted Exercised At Market price Date -
30 June during the during the 30 Jure Exercise at date from which Expiry
2002 Year Year 2003 price  of exercise exercisable date
Name of Directors
Tony Ball 5,145() - - 5.145 £5.83 n/a 12.08.02 12.08.09
' 594,855(i) - - 594.855 £5.83 n/a 12.08.02 12.08.06
600,000 (i) - - 600,000 £7.35 n/a 05.06.05 05.06.12
Martin Stewart 2,096 {iif - 2,096 - £4.62 £6.62 - -
MNotes: "
(i) The options granted to Tony Ball on 12 August 1939 became exercisable during the year. The performance conditions for these options are set out in Section 10.
{ii) The performance conditions for these awards are as set out in section 10. :
(iti) Options granted under the Company’s Sharesave Scheme. These options were exercised on 22 May 2003 following their maturity, however the shares are still held by Martin *
Stewart. The gain on exercise of the Sharesave options was £4,192. Options under the Company’s Sharesave scheme are not subject to performance conditions. '
During the year ended 30 June 2003 the share price traded within the range of £4.58 to £7.06 per share. The middie-market closing price on the last working day of the financial -
year was £6.72. :
{
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Report on Directors’ Remuneration

continued

19. Share interests

The interests of the Directors in the Ordinary Share capital of the Company during the
year werg:

At 30 June 2003 At 30 June 2002

Lord St John of Fawsley 2,000 2,000
Lord Wilson of Dinton 486 -
Martin Stewart 2,096 -

Except as disclosed in this repont, no other Director held any interest in the share
capital, including options. of the Company, or of any subsidiary of the Company. during
the year. All interests at the date shown are beneficial and there have been no changes
between 1 July 2003 and 11 August 2003.

The ESOP is interested in 5,457,012 Ordinary Shares in which the Directors who are
employees are deemed to be interested by virtue of Section 324 of the Companies Act
1985 {see note 15 of the financial statements).

Directors’ Responsibilities

United Kingdom company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period.

After making enquiries, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving
the financial statements, that there is a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of British Sky Broadcasting
Group pic

We have audited the financial statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group pic for the
year ended 30 June 2003 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance
Sheets, the Cash Flow Statement, the Staternent of Total Recognised Gains and Losses,
and the related notes 1 to 31. These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therain. We have also audited the information in the part of
the Report on Directors’ Remuneration that is described as having been audited.

This Report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with
section 235 of the Companies Act 1985, Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might siate to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the fuflest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and
the Company's members as a body. for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As described in the statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Company's Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and accounting standards. They are aiso responsible for the
preparation of the other information contained in the annual report including the Report
on Directors™ Remuneration. Qur responsibility is to audit the financial statements and
the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration described as having been audited in
accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements and
auditing standards.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair
view and whether the financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors’
Remuneration described as having been audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Directors' report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
Directors' remuneration and transactions with the Company and other members of the
Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the Company's
compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined Code specified for our review by
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are
not required 1o consider whether the Board’'s statements on internal contro! cover all
risks and controls. or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance procedures Or its risk and conirol procedures.

Approximately 30% of the QOrdinary Shares of News Corporation Limited {"News Corp”)
are owned by either () Mr. Murdoch (i) Cruden Investments Pty. Umited. a private
Australian investment company owned by Mr. Murdoch, members of his famiy. including
James Murdoch. his son and a director of the Company and various comorations and
trusts. the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Murdoch, members of his family and cenain
charities, or (i) carporations. which are controlled by trustees of settlements and trusts sel
up for the benefit of the Murdoch family, certain charities and other persons.

Holdco, a significant shareholder in the Group, is a subsidiary of News Corp.

News Corporation Group has significant transactions with the Group as set out in of the
financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Dave Gormizy
Company Secretary
11 August 2003

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

We read the Directors' Report and the other information contained in the annual report
for the above year as described in the contents section including the unaudited part of
the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and consider the implications for our repont if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with United Kingdom auditing standards issued
by the Auditing Practices Boar}{n audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the
part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration described as having been audited. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
Directors in the preparation of the financial statements and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adeguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit o as to obtain all the information andgxplanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidel to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Report on
Directors’ Remuneration described as having been audited are free from wmaterial
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregutarity or error. In forming our
opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration described as
having been audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group at 30 June 2003 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended;
and

- the financial statements and part of the Report on Directors' Remuneration described
as having been audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985.

uche LILP

sred Accountanis ana

11 August 2003
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~Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 30 June 2003

Before Before
goodwill and Goodwill and goodwill and  Goodwill and
exceptional exceptional 2003 exceptional exceptional 2002
items items Total items items Total
NOTES £m £m £€m £m £m £m

Turnover: Group turnover and share of joint ventures' turnover 3.262.5 - 3,262.5 2,915.3 - 2,815.3

Less: share of joint ventures’ turnover (76.5) - (76.5) (139.2) - (138.2)
Group turnover 2 3,186.0 - 3,186.0 2,776.1 - 2,776.1
Operating expenses, net 3 {2.815.3) (116.7)  (2,932.0) (2,584.8) (136.5) (2.721.1)
EBITDA 1 468.6 4.8 473.4 272.7 (18.2) 254.5
Depreciation (97.9) - (97.9) 81.1) - @11
Amortisation - (121.5) (121.5) 0.1) (118.3) (118.4)
Operating profit (ioss) 370.7 (116.7) 254.0 1915 (136.5) 55.0

Share of operating results of joint ventures 5 34 - 3.4 (76.7) - (76.7)
Joint ventures' goodwill amortisation, net” 14 - - - - (1.069.9) (1,069.9)

Profit on sale of fixed asset investments 4 - - - - 23 2.3
Amounts written off fixed asset investments, net 4 - (15.1) (15.1) - (60.0) (60.0)
Release of provision for loss on disposal of subsidiary 4 - - - - 10.0 10.0

Profit {loss) on ordinary activities before interest and taxation 37441 {131.8) 2423 114.8 (1,254.1)  (1,139.3)
interest receivable and similar income 6 3.7 - 3.7 111 - 111

Interest payable and similar charges 6 (118.2) - {118.2) (148.0) - (148.0)

Protit {loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 7 259.6 (131.8) 127.8 (22.1) (1.254.1) (1,276.2)
Tax on profit (loss) on ordinary activities 9 (58.7) 121.2 62.5 (28.6) (77.8) (106.4) ;
Protit {loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 200.9 (10.6) 190.3 (80.7) (1.331.9) (1,382.8) '

4

Equity dividends - paid and proposed 10 - - : :
Retained profit {loss) for the financial year 24 190.3 (1,382.8) ‘
Basic earnings {loss) per share 1 10.5p (0.6p) 9.9p (2.7p) {(70.6p) (73.3p) :
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 1 10.3p (0.5p) 9.8p 2.7p) (70.6p) (73.3p) i

Details of movements on reserves are shown in note 24.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated profit and loss account.
All results relate to continuing operations.

“Included within last year's joint ventures' goodwill amortisation of £1,069.9 million is £971.4 million in respect of an Impairment of KirchPayTV GmbH & Co KGaA (“KirchPayTV"} goodwilt
(see notes 4 and 14) K

Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gainsand Losses

for the year ended 30 June 2003 . . ¢

pe)

2003 2002

NOTES £m £m i

Profit (loss) for the financial year 24 190.3 -“\,..(1 ,382.6) :
Translation differences on foreign currency net investment 24 - 1.4 s

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 190.3 ,(1,381.2) o,

“Included within the profit loss) for the year is a £1.5 million profit (2002: £80.9 miliion ioss) in respect of the Group's share of the results of joint ventures,
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses. e 7

32 Annual Renon ano £ccounis 200% British Sky Broadcasting Group pic

L

e 4 2



~Consolidated Balance Sheet

at 30 June 2003
2003 2002
NOTES £m m
ixed assets
rnlfangib*e csels 12 535.9 8574
Tangibie assets 13 346.2 343.0
m\,es(mems:v .
jnvestments in joint ventures: Share of gross assets 86.8 88.7
: Share of gross liabilities (59.0} (68.5)
: Transfer to creditors 2.6 18
Total investments in joint ventures 14 30.4 218
Other fixed asset investments 15 78.5 107.1
Tota! investments 108.9 128.9
991.0 1,129.3
current assets
Stocks 18 370.4 414.2
Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year
- deferred tax assets 18 30.8 13.9
- other 363.3 387.0
7 394.1 400.9
Debtors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
- deferred tax assets 18 159.0 24.9
- other 63.9 182.1
17 222.9 207.0
Cash at bank and in hand 46.4 50.3
1,033.8 1.072.4
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
- short-term borrowings 19 (0.2) (1.5)
~ other creditors 19 (955.0) (903.9)
{955.2) {905.4)
Net cusrent assets 78.6 167.0
Total assets tess current liabilities 1,069.6 1,296.3
Creditors: Amounts failing due after more than one year
~ long-term borrowings 20 (1,151.6) (1.576.9)
- other creditors 20 {20.5) (16.0)
(1,172.1) (1,592.9)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 22 (3.2 (4.1)
(195.7) (300.7)
) ™~ /
Capital and reserves - equity - .
Called-up share capital 23 968.9 , 946.7
Share premium 24 2.535.5 . 24088
Shares o e issued 24 2.7 255.8
Merger reserve 24 299.0 266.7
Profit and loss account 24 (3.911.8) (4,179.7)
24 1105.7) < (300.7)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet.
crpEnal Tl oard
Chief Executive Officer
& 2 Chief Financial Officer
11 August 2003
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Company Balance Sheet
at 30 June 2003

2003 2002
NOTES £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 1.7 19
Investments 15 4,905.1 5.033.4
4,908.8 5.035.3
Current assets
Debtors: Amounts faling due within one year
- deferred tax assets 18 14.8 -
- other 529.2 956.0
17 544.0 956.0
Debtors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
- deferred tax assets . 18 107.8 -
- other 4.2 80.3
17 112.0 60.3
Cash at bank and in hand - 0.1 :
656.0 1,016.4 :
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 18 (452.2) (466.5)
Net current assets 203.8 548.8
3
Total assets less current liabilities 5,110.6 55852 ¢
1
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 20 {1.880.0) (2.305.0) ’
3.230.6 3,280.2 :
:
Capital and reserves - equity H
Called-up share capital 23 968.9 9467 ke
Share premium 24 2,535.5 2,408.8 o
Shares to be issued 224 2.7 2558
Capital reserve 24 843.9 843.9 ;
Profit and loss account 24 {1,120.4) (1,176.0) )
24 3,230.6 3,280.2
The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this balance sheet. p
:
o pEnEl of ine Bnas £
2a' Chief Executive Officer §
i =17 Chief Financial Officer L
11 August 2003 [F
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2003

2003 2002
NOTES £m m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 28a 663.6 2497
Dividends received from joint ventures 4.0 -
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received and similar income 3.2 8.8
Interest paid and similar charges on external financing {127.3) (141.0)
Interest element of finance lease payments (0.5} (0.6)
Net cash outfiow from returns on investments and servicing of finance {124.6) {132.8)
Taxation
UK corporation tax paid (17.6) -
Consortium relief (paid) received {0.3) 225
Net cash {outflow) inflow from taxation (17.9) 22.5
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Payments to acquire tangibie fixed assets (98.4) {100.8)
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets 0.6 -
Receipts from sales of fixed asset investments 0.8 0.4
Receipts from sales of intangible fixed assets - 0.6
purchase of own shares for Employee Share Ownership Plan {"/ESOP”) - (26.9)
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (97.0} (126.7)
Acqguisitions and disposals
Funding to joint ventures (1.6} (11.8)
Repayments of funding from joint ventures 4.5 4.8
Net cash outflow from acquisitions and disposals (10.1} 6.8)
Net cash inflow before management of liquid resources and financing 418.0 5.9
Management of liquid resources
Decrease in shori-term deposits o8¢ 0.5 695
Financing
Proceeds from issue of Ordinary Shares 4.8 14.3
payments made on the issue of Ordinary Shares ' 0.1) (1.8}
Capital element of finance lease payments 28b {1.6) 1.7)
Net decrease in total debt 280 (425.0) (190.0)
Net cash outftow from financing {421.9) (179.2)
Decrease in cash 28¢ (3.4} (103.8)
Decrease in net debt 28¢ 422.7 18.4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated cash flow statement. \\
v
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Notes to Financial Statements

01 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. All of these have been applied
consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.

a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
modified to include the revaluation of certain investments. and in accordance with
applicable financial reporting and accounting standards.

b) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company
and all of its subsidiary undertakings. All companies are consolidated using acquisition
accounting and all inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated on
consolidation.

The Group maintains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday nearest to
30 June in each vear. In fiscal year 2003 this date was 29 June 2003. this being a
52 week year (2002: 30 June 2002, 52 week year),

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 230 of the Companies
Act 1985 not to present its own profit and loss account. The Company’s result for the
financial year determined in accordance with the Act is disciosed in note 24.

¢} Acquisitions

On the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the Group's share of
separable net assets acquired. Adjustments are also made to bring the accounting
policies into line with those of the Group. Where statutory merger relief is applicable, the
difference between the fair value of the shares issued as purchase consideration and
the nominal value of the shares issued as purchase consideration is treated as a merger
reserve in the consolidated accounts. The results and cash flows relating to an acquired
business are included in the consolidated profit and loss account and the consolidated
cash flow statement from the date of acquisition,

On disposal or closure of a previously acquired business, any goodwil previously written
off to reserves will be included in calculating the profit or loss on disposal.

d} Goodwill and other intangible assets

Where the cost of acquisition exceeds the fair values attributable to the net assets
acquired, the difference is treated as purchased goodwill and capitalised on the Group
balance sheet in the year of acquisition. Purchased goodwill arising on acquisitions
from 1 July 1998 is capitalised. Prior to 1 July 1988, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against reserves. As permitted by FRS 10, this goodwill has not been restated
on the balance sheet.

Other intangible assets. alt of which have been acquired, which are controlted through
custody or legal rights and could be sold separately from the rest of the business, are
capitalised where fair value can be reliably measured.

Where capitalised goodwill and intangible assets are regarded as having a limited useful
economic life. the cost is amortised on a straight-tine basis over that life of up to 20
years. Impairment reviews are carried out to ensure that goodwili and intangible assets
are not carried at above their recoverable amounts. Any amortisation or impairment
write-downs are charged to the profit and loss account.

e) Interests in joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities in which the Group holds a long-term interest and shares
control under a contractual arrangement. These investments are dealt with by the gross
equity method of accounting. Provision is made within creditors where the Group's
share of a joint venture's loss exceeds the Group's funding to date.

f} Fixed asset investments

in the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary undertakings are
stated at cost, with the exception of the investment in Sky Television Limited ("Sky”)
which is stated at valuation. Provision is made for any impairment.

In the Company's balance sheet, where statutory merger relief is applicable, the cost
is measured by reference 1o the nominal value only of the shares issued. Any premium
is not recognised.

The Company’s shares held by the ESOP are included in the consolidated balance
shest as fixed asset investments until such time as the interest in the shares is
transferred unconditionally to the employees. Provision is made for any permanent
diminution in the value of shares held by the ESOR.

A charge is made in the profit and loss account in relation to the shares held by the
ESOP for awards under the Long-Term Incentive Plan {“LTIP™, the Key Contributor Plan
("KCP") and the Equity Bonus Plan ("EBP") based on an assessment of the prabability
of the performance criteria under the LTIP, KCP and EBP being met. The charge is
allocated on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods of the LTIP, KCP and EBP.

The Group's other fixed asset investments are stated at cost, less any provision for
permanent diminution in value.

g) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any
provision for impairment. Land and assets in the course of construction are not
depreciated.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost. less estimated residual value. of each
asset on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. Principal annual rates used
for this purpose are:

Freehold buildings
Leasehold improvements
Equipment. fixtures and fittings:

Lower of izase penod or life of the assat

- Fixtures and fittings 10 - 20%
- Computer equipment 20t - 330
~ Technical equipment 0% - 200,

25t

- Motor vehicles

h) Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill

Intangible fixed assets, goodwill and tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment
if events or circumstances indicate that the camrying value may not be recoverable.
Goodwill and intangible fixed assets are also reviewed for impaiment at the end of the
first full financial year after acquisition. Should an impairment review be required. this is
performed in accordance with FRS 11 - impairment of fixed assets and goodwill.

i) Stocks

Telewsion programme nonts

Programme rights are stated at cost (including, where applicable, estimated escalation
payments) less accumulated amortisation. Provisions are made for any programme
rights which are surplus to Group requirements or which will not be shown for any
other reason.

Contractual obligations for programme rights not yet available for transmission are not
included in the cost of programme rights, but are disclosed as contractual
commitments {see note 25). Payments made upon receipt of commissioned and
acquired programming, but in advance of the legal right to broadcast the programmes,
are treated as prepayments.

Acquired and commissioned programme rights are recorded in stock at cost when the
programmes are available for transmission.

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of acquired and commissioned programme
rights as follows:

Sponis - 100% on first showing. or where contracts provide for sports rights for muttiple
seasons or competitions. the amortisation of each contract is based on anticipated
revenue.
Currsnt &7 - 100% on first showing.

Generat enigrizinment - straight-line basis on each transmission at the following rates:
- One showing planned - 100%

- Two showings planned - 60%; 40%

- Three showings planned - 50%; 30%; 20%

~ Four showings planned - 40%; 30%; 20%: 10%

Movizs - Acquired movies are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
transmission rights. Where acouired movie rights provide for a second availability
window, 10% of the cost is allocated to that window. Own movie productions are
amortised in line with anticipat®d revenue @ver a maximum of five years.

Set-wop hoxes and relz aguiment :
Set-top boxes and related equipment include digital set-top boxes, Low Noise
Blockers (“LNBs") and mini-dishes. These stocks are valued at the lower of cost and
Net Realisable Value (“NRV") (which reflects the value to the business of the set-top
box and the related equipment in the hands of the customer). Any subsidyds expensed
on enablement, which is the process of activating the viewing card once insefted in the

set-top box upon installation, so as to enable a viewer to view encrypted broadcast .

services, and effectively represents the completion of the installation process for new
subscribers. -

Raw maienais. consumaizi2s and goods held jor resals

Raw materials, consumables and goods held for resale are valued at the lower of cost

and NRV.

i) Transponder rentals

Payments made in advance to secure satellite capacity have been recorded as prepaid
transponder rentals. These payments are amortised on a straight-line basis to the profit
and less account from commencement of broadcasting to the end of the rental period,
normally 10 years.

k) Taxation
Corporation tax payable is provided at current rates on all taxable profits.

36
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Accounting policies (continued)

I) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences that have originated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date, where transactions or events that result in an
obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have
occurred at the balance sheet date.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only
when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not
that there will be suitable taxable profits against which carried forward tax losses
can be offset and from which the future reversal of underlying timing differences can
be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the
periods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis,

m) Foreign currency

Trading activities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in sterling at actual
exchange rates as of the date of the transaction or at the contracted rate if the
transaction is covered by a forward foreign exchange contract or other hedging
instrument. Monetary assets, liabilities and commitments denominated in foreign
currencies at the year end are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at the year
end or, if hedged. at the appropriate hedged rate.

The results of overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures are translated at the average
rates of exchange during the period and the balance sheet is transiated at the rates
niing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on translation of the
opening net assets and results of the overseas subsidiaries and joint ventures and on
foreign currency borrowings, to the extent that they hedge the Group's investment in
these operations, are dealt with through reserves.

n) Derivatives and other financial instruments

The Group uses a limited number of derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposures 1o fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates. Instruments accounted
for as hedges are structured so as to reduce the market risk associated with the
underlying transaction being hedged and are designated as a hedge at the inception of
the contract. Receipts and payments on interest rate instruments are recognised on an
accruals basis, over the life of the instrument. Gains and losses on instruments used for
hedging are not recognised until the hedged position is recognised.

Cash flows associated with derivative financial instruments are classified in the cash
fiow statement in a manner consistent with those of the underlying transactions being
hedged. If an instrument ceases to be accounted for as a hedge, for example. by the
underlying hedged position being eliminated. the instrument is marked to market and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.

The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative
pUIPOSES.

o) Turnover

Turnover, which excludes value added tax and sales between Group companies,

represents the value of products and services sold. The Group's main sources of

turnover are recognised as follows:

- Revenues from the provision of direct-to-home ("DTH") subscription services are
recognised as the services are provided. Pay-per-view revenue is recognised when
the event, movie or football match is viewed.

- Cable revenue is recognised as the services are provided to the cable wholesalers
and is based on the number of subscribers taking the Sky channels as reported to
the Group by the cable companies and the applicable rate card.

- Advertising sales revenues are recognised when the advertising is broadcast.

- Interactive turnover includes income from betting and gaming, on-fine advertising,
interngt, e-commerce, interconnect, text services and set-top box subsidy recovery
revenues from conditional access and access control customers on the Sky digital
platform. Betting and gaming revenues represent: a) amounts receivable in respect of
bets placed on events which occur in the year; and b) net customer losses in the year
in respect of the on-line casino operations. All other Interactive revenues are
recognised when the goods or services are delivered.

~ Other revenue principally includes income from installations (net of any discount),
service call revenue, warranty revenue, marketing contributions from third party
channels, conditional access fees and access control fees. Other revenues are
recognised, net of any discount given, when the relevant service has been provided.

p} Pension costs

The Group provides pensions to eligible employees through the BSkyB Pension Plan
which is a defined contribution scheme. The amount charged to the profit and loss
account in the year represents the cost of contributions payable by the Group to the
scheme in that year. The assets of the BSkyB Pension Pian are held independently of
the Group.

q) Leases

Assets held under finance leases are treated as tangible fixed assets. Depreciation is
provided over the shorter of the lease term and the asset’s useful economic life, and the
deemed capital element of future rentals is included within creditors. Deemed interest
is charged as interest payable over the period of the lsase.

The rental costs arising from operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account
in the year in which they are incurred,

r) EBITDA

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation) is calculated
as operating profit before depreciation and amortisation or impairment of goodwill and
intangibie fixed assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

02 Turnover

2003 2002

fm £m

DTH subscribers 2.341.2 1.929.2
Cable and digital terrestrial television (“DTT") subscribers 202.2 279.4
Advertising 283.6 250.7
Interactive 218.3 186.0
COther 140.7 130.8
3,186.0 2.776.1

All Group turnover is derived from the Group’s sole class of business, being television broadcasting together with certain ancillary functions, and arises principally within the United
Kingdom from activities conducted from the United Kingdom, with the exception of £0.4 million of turnover (2002: £23.0 million) which refates to activities conducted from the Channel
Islands. In order to provide sharehoiders with additional information, the Group’s turnover has been analysed as shown above.
Al turnover arises from services provided to the United Kingdom, with the exception of £92.9 milion (2002: £62.4 million) which arises from services provided to Ireland and
£9.0 million (2002: £7.7 million) which arises from services provided to the Channel Islands.
The Group’s profit before tax and its net liabilities refate to activities conducted in the United Kingdom, with the exception of £0.8 million loss (2002: £0.3 million loss) and £0.9 milion
of net assets (2002: £0.3 million net assets) which relate to activities conducted in the Channel Islands. The Group's ioss before tax and its net liabilities in the prior year also included
a £1.143.5 milion loss and nil assets which related to activities conducted in Germany.

03 Operating expenses, net

Before

goodwill and

Goodwill and

Before

goodwill and Goodwill and

2002 ;

exceptional exceptional 2003 exceptional exceptional
items items Total items items Total
£m £m £m £m £€m £m
Programming (i) 1,603.9 - 1.603.9 1,439.3 - 1,439.3
Transmission and related functions (i) 142.8 - 142.8 1466 4.1) 142.5
Marketing 400.5 - 400.5 416.6 - 416.6
Subscriber management 324.4 - 324.4 2911 - 2811 o
Administration 236.1 116.7 352.8 203.2 140.6 3438 .
Betting 107.6 - 107.6 87.8 - 87.8 <
2,815.3 116.7 2,832.0 2,584.6 136.5 2.721.14 /.

() The amounts shown are net of £12.0 milion (2002: £15.3 milfion) receivable from the disposal of programming rights not acquired for use by the Group, and £25.5 million

(2002: £23.7 million) in respect of the provision to third party broadcasters of spare transponder capacity.

P

04 Exceptional items E
§
Charge Charge ;
{credit) Taxation (credit) Taxation §
before charge 206Q3 before charge 2002 i
taxation (credit) Total™~ taxation {credit) Total ’ 1
£m £m ~€m . £m £m m ¢
) %
(Release of provision) provision against [TV Digital programming debtors (i) (iv) (4.8} 1.4 (3.4) ! 223 6.7) 156 {
Release of analogue termination provision (v) - - - 4.1) 1.2 (2.9 3
Exceptional operating items (4.8) 1.4 (3.4) 18.2 (5.5) 12.7 ‘
Joint ventures' goodwill amortisation, net (vi) - - - g71.4 - . 9714 i
Profit on sale of fixed asset investment (vii) - - - 2.3) - N 2.3) v
Amounts written off fixed asset investments, net (see note 15) (i) {vili) 15.1 - 15.1 60.0 - . '60.0 }.";;
Release of provision for loss on disposal of subsidiary (ix) - - - (10.0) - (10.0) . N
(Recognition) write-down of deferred tax asset (i) (x) - (122.6) (122.6) - 83.3 83.3 b
Total exceptional items 10.3 (121.2) (110.9) 1,037.3 778 1,115.1 ¢
f:

®

Iy

i

I

&

¥

i

I
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

04 Exceptional items (continued)

2003

Excepiionai operating items
The Group provided in full against all unprovided balances owed by ITV Digital. following the announcement made on 30 April 2002 (see note (iv) below). During the vear. the Group
received £4.8m from 1TV Digital's administrators and released £4.8 milfion of its exceptional operating provision accordingly.

Qther exceptronal items

ERR-RESH

fi ATRIUNT AT
At 31 December 2002 the Group made a furlher provrsron against its minority investments in football clubs. leading 1o a non-cash exceptional charge of £21.0 million. Subsequently,
the Group reduced its provision against its investment in Chelsea Village plc at 30 June 2003 by £3.2 million, following the agreement to sell its minority investment in July 2003.

At 31 December 2002. the Group reduced its deferred revenue balance relating to minority investments in new media companies by £5.1 million, and reduced both its investment
and its provision against the investment in these companies accordingly.

At 31 December 2002. the Group made a provision against its investment in Open TV shares. leading to a non-cash exceptional charge of £2.9 million, bringing the carrying value
of the Group's investment in Open TV to £0.3 miflion. During February and March 2003, the Group disposed of its entire investment in Open TV shares, leading to a loss on disposal
of £0.1 million.

e v of me forecast utisation of tax losses within the Group, and as a consequence of a planned recrganisation of certain assets within the Group. there is now sufficient
gvidence 1o support the recognition of a deferred tax asset arising on losses incurred in the Company. Accordingly, a deferred tax credit of £122.6 milion has been recognised as
an exceptional tem.

2002

=)u:eptionai operating items

At 27 March 2002, the date on which the ITV Digital DTT platform was put into administration, the Group had balances owed to it and unprovided for. in respect of programming
iicensed to TV Digital, of £22.3 miion. On 30 April 2002, the joint administrators of ITV Digital announced the closure of pay television services on the platform and their intention
1o close the administration. Accordingly, the Group made an exceprional operating provision against the whole of this balance (see note {j above}.

On 27 September 2001, the Group termrnaled its analogue operation. From the original exceptional operating provision of £41.0 million. taken at 30 June 2000, £4.1 milion
of provision had not been utilised at 30 June 2002, and was therefore released to the profit and loss account as an exceptional credit.

Other exce.;tronal items

AL LSO ATGUE D N

The exceptronar rtem of £971.4 mruron of Jornt ventures' goodwill amortisation, net. relates to the impairment charge taken against the carrying value of the Group's interest in
KirchPayTV of £984.9 million at 31 December 2001, net of an amount of £13.5 million released from the provision matching the Group's share of losses for the period from 1 January

2002 to 8 February 2002, at which date the Group ceased to gross equity account for KirchPayTV's results (see notes 5 and 14).

e Deptoee sat oF tvad nacE

R

On ? Ju)y 2001, the Group disposed of rts unlisted investment in Static 2358 Limited, realising a profit on disposat of £2.3 million {see note 15).

At 31 December 2001 the Group made a provrsron against its minority investments in football clubs, leading to a non-cash exceptional charge of £60.0 million,

vy BEIBETE DT T, L0005 O O

.d"

On 16 October 2001, the Group and Ladorokes the bettmg and gaming division of Hilton Group plc. announced that they had agreed not to pursue the proposed joint venture to
offer a fixed odds betting service on Sky Sports channels and other media. As a result, the provision for loss on disposal o subsidiary, taken at 30 June 2001. was written back,
resulting in @ non-cash exceptional profit of £10.0 milion. The Group continues to operate and develop interactive TV betting services through its wholly-owned bookmaker, Sky Bet 4
(formerly known as Surrey Sports).

5 Vi tEe0n e T DETETEN A 588E)

Following the mparrment charge made in respect of the Group's investment in KirchPayTV at 31 December 2001 (see note 14} there was insufficient evidence to support the
recognition of a deferred tax asset arising on losses incurred by certain UK companies. Accordingly. the deferred tax asset of £85.6 million was written off in full at 31 December
2001, although by 30 June 2002, £12.3 million of this amount had been written back due to the utiisation of tax losses.

-
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Share of operating resuits of joint ventures

2003 2002

£m £m

KirchPayTV operating loss - (70.0)
Programming joint ventures operating profit (loss), net 3.4 6.7)
3.4 76.7)

This relates to the Group's equity share of the operating results of the Group’s joint ventures,

KirchPayTV

By 8 February 2002, the Group considered that its refationship with KirchPayTV had imevocably changed and that the Group had not exercised significant infiuence since that date.
Therefore, the Group believed that, from 8 February 2002, it was no longer appropriate to account for its interest in KirchPayTV as a joint venture, and ceased accounting for
KirchPayTV's losses using the gross equity method from that date.

As the Group has no intention of providing any future funding to KirchPayTV and the Group, on a consolidated basis, has no financial commitments, outstanding financial liabilities
or contingent liabiiities in respect of KirchPayTV, an amount of £13.5 million was released from the impairment provision made at 31 December 2001, in order to match the Group's
share of KirchPayTV's losses for the period from 1 January 2002 to 8 February 2002,

Interest

a) Interest receivabie and similar income

2003 2002
£m £m
Group
Interest receivable on short-term deposits 2.6 8.2
Interest receivable on funding to joint ventures 0.1 03
Cther interest receivable and similar income 0.5 06
3.2 g1
Joint ventures
Share of joint ventures' interest receivable 0.5 20
Total interest receivable and similar income 3.7 111
b) interest payable and similar charges
2003 2002
£m £m
Group
On bank ioans, overdrafts and other loans repayable within five years, not by instaiments:
- £200 million revolving credit facility (“RCF™) (previously £300 million RCF)” 25\ 10.8
- £750 million RCF** 27.0 N 46.3
- £600 milfion RCF 37 A -
US$650 million of 8.200% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2009 31.1 , 31.6
£100 milion of 7.750% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2008 7.8 = 7.8
US$600 million of 8.875% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2009 30.1 30.1
US$300 million of 7.300% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2006 13.8 15.1
Finance lease interest 1.0 1.0
Other interest payable and similar charges 0.8 \ 0.4
117.8 e 1431

Joint ventures .
Share of joint ventures' interest payable 0.3 . 4.9

Total interest payable and similar charges 118.2 148.0°

*in March 20083, the Group voluntarily cancelied £100 million of its £300 million RCF. The maturity date of the resuttant £200 million RCF is still June 2004.

**In addition, in March 2003 the Group entered into a new £600 milion RCF. This facility was used to cancel the £750 million RCF, which was entered into in July 1998, and will be
used for general corporate purposes. The new £600 milion RCF has a maturity date of March 2008,
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

o7 Profit (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation

2003 2002
£m £m
The profit (foss) on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging (crediting):
- depreciation (see note 13)
- owned assets 96.2 79.5
- assets held under finance leases 1.7 1.8
- amortisation and impairment of intangible fixed assets {see note 12) 121.5 118.4
- joint ventures' goodwill amortisation, net (see note 14) 1.069.9
- amounts written off fixed asset investments. net (see note 15) 15.1 60.0
- profit on disposals of fixed assets and fixed asset investments (0.2 (2.3)
- rentals on operating leases and simitar arrangements:
- land and buildings 8.0 8.2
- plant and machinery 80.0 76.4
- staff costs (see note 8) 299.1 276.9
Amounts payable 1o the auditors are analysed below:
2003 2002
£m £m
Statutory audit services 0.8 . 07
Audit related fees 0.6 08
Audit and audit related services 1.4 15
Tax advisory services 0.6 0.4
Customer relationship management centre development 5.1 48
Website development - 05
Other services 0.7 1.0
Non-audit related services 58 6.3

During the year, the auditors received £5.1 million (2002: £4.8 milion} in respect of on-gaing contact centre development services. Due to the complex and long-term nature of the
infrastructure development work, the Group is satisfied that Deloitte & Touche should continue to provide these services.

In addition to the amounts above, the Group understands that, during the pravious year, its auditors indirectly received £4.0 million from the Group, through the performance of
sub-contracted services for one of the Group's customer relationship management centre consultants. The Group understands that no such payments were made during 2003.

The Company did not pay any amounts to the auditors in respect of audit services during either year, as the cost was borne by another Group undertaking in both years.

08 Staff costs

a) Employee costs
Employee costs for permanent and temporary employees, and Executive Directors during the year amounted to:

2003\ 2002

£m £m &
Wages and salaries 234.3 ' 2271
Costs of LTIP, KCP, EBP and other share-related bonus schemes 274 ! 17.2
Social security costs 259 22.0
Other pension costs 11.5 10.6
299.1 276.9

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme through the BSkyB Pension Plan. The pension charge for the year represents the cost of contributions pay""si@ by the
Group to the Plan during the year and amounted to £11.5 million (2002: £10.6 million). The Group's contributions owing to the Plan at 30 June 2003 were £0.8 million (30 June
2002: £0.7 million). .

a

The average monthly number of full time equivalent people (including temporary employees) employed by the Group during the year was as follows:

2003 2002

Number Number

Programming 1,106 1,131
Transmission and related functions 1,383 1,274
Marketing 199 193
Subscriber management 5,381 5,432
Administration 954 965
Betting 109 B8
9,132 9,083

b} Directors’ emoluments

A detalled breakdown of remuneration by Director. the terms of thexr employment contracts and their rights under the Group's incentive schemes are given within the Report on
Directors' Remuneration on pages 26 to 31, of which sections 13 to 18 are audited.
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-Notes to Financial Statements

continued

09 Taxation

a} Analysis of charge (credit) in year

Tax charge 1
(credit) on Tax charge on .
profit before Exceptionai profit before
exceptional tax charge 2003 exceptional Exceptional 2002
items {credit) Total items tax charge (i) Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m ;
§
Current tax 85.0 1.4 86.4 - - - :
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences {26.6) (122.6) (148.2) 27.3 77.8 1051
Increase in estimate of recoverable deferred tax asset in respect of prior years {1.8) - (1.8) - - -
Total deferred tax (i) (28.4) (122.6) {151.0} 27.3 77.8 105.1
Share of joint ventures’ tax charge 2.1 - 2.1 1.3 - 1.3
58.7 (121.2) (62.5) 28.6 77.8 106.4

{i) During the year the Group recorded a deferred tax credit of £163.3 million relating to deferred tax assets not previously recognised. The Directors consider that there is now
sufficient evidence 1o support the recognition of these deferred tax assets on the basis that it is more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits against which these ‘
assets can be utilised. £122.8 million of the deferred tax credit has been treated as an exceptional item.

(iiy An exceptional deferred tax charge of £95.6 milion was made at 31 December 2001, against which £12.3 milion was written back at 30 June 2002 as a result of the utilisation ;
of tax losses. This was offset by a £5.5 million tax credit on a provision against ITV Digital's programming debtor and the release of the analogue termination provision, treated as
exceptional operating items.

b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year
The current tax charge for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (30%). The differences are explained below:

2003 2002 ;
£m £m ;

Profit (loss) on ordinary activities before tax 127.8 (1,276.2)
Less: Share of joint ventures' (profit) loss before tax {3.6) 79.6 i
Group profit (loss) on ordinary activities before tax 124.2 (1,196.8) :
Group profit (foss) on ordinary activities muttiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 30% (2002: 30%) 37.3 (359.0)

Effects of.

Write-down of KirchPayTV not deductible for tax purposes - 2914

Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes {primarily goodwill amortisation) 42.5 77.8 .
Other timing differences 11.8 18.2 {
Utilisation of tax losses (7.3) (30.6) s
Consortium relief 2.1 12 )
Current tax charge for the year 86.4 -

c) Factors that may affect future tax charges

At 30 June 2003, a deferred tax asset of £12.5 million (2002: £149.6 million) arising from UK losses in the Group, has not been Tscognised. These losses can be oftset only against
taxable profits generated in the entities concerned. Although the Directors ultimately expect sufficient profits to arise, there is.currently msuﬂ' cient evidence to support recognition of
a deferred tax asset relating to these losses. The losses are available to be carried forward indefinitely under current law.

Deferred tax assets of £63.7 milion (2002: £63.7 million) have not been recognised in respect of trading losses in the Group's German holding companies of KirchPayTV, and !
£450.0 million (2002: £450.0 million) have not been recognised in respect of potential capital losses related to the Group's holding of KirchPayTV. A deferred tax asset of £4.6 million ;
(2002: £18.0 million) arising principally on other timing differences has not been recognised on the basis that these timing differences are not more likely than not to reverse. i

-

ar v

10 Dividends -7 ¥
The Directors do not propose an interim or final dividend for the financial year (2002: nil). At 30 June 2003, the Company has a deficit on the profit and loss account reserve of
£1,120.4 million (see note 24}. The Company is currently nct in a position to pay a dividend.

The ESOP has waived its rights to dividends.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

garnings {loss) per share
Basic eamings (loss) per share represents the profit (loss) on ordinary activities after taxation attributable to the equity shareholders, divided by the weighted average number of
Ordinary Shares in issue during the year. less the weighted average number of shares held in the Group’s ESOP trust during the vear.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share represents the profit (loss) on ordinary activities after taxation attributable to the equity shareholders divided by the weighted average number of
Ordinary Shares in issue during the year, less the weighted average number of shares held in the Group’s ESOP trust during the year plus the weighted average number of dilutive
shares resulting from share options and other potential shares outstanding during the year (see below).

The weighted average number of shares in the year was:

2003 2002

Millions of shares Millions of shares
Ordinary Shares 1,921.2 1.891.0
ESOP trust shares (6.2) (3.8)
Basic shares 1.915.0 1.887.4
Dilutive Ordinary Shares from share options and other potential QOrdinary Shares outstanding 27.2 -
Diluted shares 1,942.2 1,887.4

“As the Group made a loss on ordinary activities after taxation in 2002, no share options or other potential Ordinary Shares outstanding were considered to be dilutive.

2003 2002

Before Atter Before After

goodwill and goodwill and  goodwill and goodwill and

exceptional Exceptional exceptional exceptional Exceptional  exceptional

items Goodwill items items items Goodwil items items

Profit {loss) on ordinary activities after taxation £200.9m (£121.5m) £110.9m £190.3m (£50.7m)  (£216.8m) (£1,115.1m) (£1,382.6m)
Basic earnings (loss) per share 10.5p {6.4p) 5.8p 9.9p (2.7p) (11.5p) 59.1p) 73.3p)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 10.3p (6.2p) 5.7p 9.8p (2.7p) (11.5p} (59.1p) (73.3p)

Earnings {loss) per share is shown calculated by reference to losses both before and after goodwill and exceptional items and related tax, since the Directors consider that this gives
a useful additional indication of undertying performance.

intangible fixed assets

The movement in the year was as follows:

Other intangible

Goodwill {i), {ii) fixed assets Total
£m £m £m
Group
Cost
Beginning and end of year 819.7 0.4 820.1
N

Amortisation ~ .
Beginning of year 162.5 © \ 02 162.7
Charge 116.3 s - 116.3
Impairment tosses (i) 5.2 ! - 52
End of year 284.0 0.2 284.2
Net book value
Beginning of year 657.2 02 ., 65874
End of year 535.7 0.2 " 5359

Goodwill "
(i) Goodwill of £272.4 milion, £542.1 million and £5.2 million, arising on the acquisitions of SIG, BiB and WAPTYV respectively, is being amortised over periods of seven years on a
straight-line basis.

In accordance with FRS 11, impairment reviews were performed on the carrying values of BiB and SIG goodwill balances at the end of the first full financial year after acquisition,
at 30 June 2002. These reviews showed that no impairment was identified in either case. Consistent with the Group strategy, the business plans on which these reviews were based
reflected significant projected increases in betting and other interactive revenues over the subsequent five years. Since the time of these reviews the performance of these operations
has been broadly in line with the forecasts in the business plans used for these reviews, and no indications of impairment have arisen.

i)y At 31 December 2002, the Group made a provision of £5.2 million. inciuded within amortisation, against goodwill which arose on the acquisition of Opta index Limited ("Opta”)
(@ subsidiary of SIG, which provides statistics on the sports industry), reducing the carrying value of the goodwill to nil. The provision was made as a result of the Group's
announcement in December 2002 that it would close Opta. The Group is currently in negotiations to sell or license some or all of Opta’s assets to a third party.

Other intangible fixed assets
Other intangible fixed assets comprise internet domain namas, which are being amortised over a period of seven years on a straight-ling basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

13 Tangible fixed assets

14

The movement in the year was as follows:

Freehold Short Equipment, Assets in
land and leasehold fixtures and course of
buildings (} improvements fittings (ii) construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Group
Cost
Beginning of year 37.9 83.3 554.4 29.9 705.5 ,
Additions ’ 0.4 3.2 73.0 24.8 101.4 '»:
Disposals - - (10.9) - (10.9)
Transfers - - 258 (25.8) - :
End of year 38.3 86.5 642.3 28.9 796.0 :
Depreciation !
Beginning of year 6.0 43.3 313.2 - 362.5 ;
Charge 2.3 4.0 91.6 - 97.9 o
Disposals - - (10.6) - (10.6)
End of year 8.3 47.3 394.2 - 449.8 5
'
Net book value :
Beginning of year 319 40.0 2412 29.9 343.0 :
End of year 30.0 39.2 248.1 28.9 346.2 {

Group ‘i
(i) The amounts shown include assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £6.3 million (2002: £6.7 million). Depreciation charged during the year on such assets was !
£0.4 million (2002: £0.3 million).

Depreciation was not charged on £9.4 million of land {2002: £9.4 miltion).

}
b
|
(it The amounts shown include assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £2.3 million (2002: £3.6 million). Depreciation charged during the year on these assets was ;
£1.3 milion (2002: £1.3 million). j

Company i
The Company's only tangible fixed assets relate to leasehold improvements at the Group's head office, the cost and net book value of which amounted to £3.2 million (2002: ;
£3.2 million) and £1.7 million {2002: £1.9 million) respectively. The depreciation charged during the year on the Company's tangible fixed assets was £0.2 miliion (2002: £0.2 million). i
Investments in joint ventures

The movement in the year was as follows:

e e e L i

2003 2002
£m £m
Group
Cost and funding, excluding goodwill ~
Beginning of year o~ 224.7 217 04 ¥
Loans advanced to joint ventures = 3y 14.6 1.6 5
Loans repaid by joint ventures , (4.5} (4.8)
End of year - D 2348 224.7 !
Transfer to creditors {i} 2.6 1.6 r
. i
Movement in share of underlying net assets \ '
Beginning of vear (204.5) T 88T g0
Share of operating resutts of joint ventures (see note 5) 3.4 o [76.7) i
Share of joint ventures’ interest receivable (see note 6) . 0.5 20
Share of joint ventures’ interest payable (see note 6) {0.3) 4.9)
Share of joint ventures’ tax charges (see note 9) (2.1) : (1.3
Dividends received from joint venture (4.0} o
Exchange adjustments - 1.4 :
Transferred to other fixed asset investments - 70.7 -
End of year (207.0) (204.5) :
-
o
4
¥
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- Notes to Financial Statements

continued

14 jnvestments in joint ventures (continued)

Group Group
2003 2002
£m £m
Goodwill

Beginning of year - 1,140.8
Amortisation - (98.5)
Amounts provided, net (see note 4) - (971.4)
Transferred to other fixed asset investments - (70.7)
End of year - -

Net book value (i}
Beginning of year 21.8 1,163.7
End of year 30.4 21.8

{) The investment in joint ventures excludes cumulative losses of £2.6 million (2002: £1.6 million), which represent losses in excess of the funding provided. The related obligation is
recorded within creditors.

(i) The net book value above includes listed investments with a net book value of £5.0 million at 30 June 2003 (2002: £6.2 million). The aggregate market value of these investments
at 30 June 2003 was £4.8 million {(2002: £3.5 million).

2002

KirchPayTV

At 31 December 2001, the carrying value of the Group's investment in its KirchPayTV joint venture was written down to nil, following an exceptional charge to joint ventures' goodwil
amortisation of £884.8 million. Joint ventures' goodwill amortisation also included goodwill amortisation of £98.5 million for the six months ended 31 December 2001. The Group's
investment in KirchPayTV was treated as a joint venture until 8 February 2002. after which date the Group considered that it was no longer able to exercise significant influence over
KirchPayTV. Accordingly on 8 February 2002, the investment was transferred within Fixed Asset Investments to Other investments at a net book value of nil. On 1 August 2002,
formal insolvency proceedings were opened for KirchPayTV. The Group does not expect to receive any funds from these proceedings. On 13 May 2002, the Group exercised a put
option to transfer its interest in KirchPayTV to Taurus Holding GmbH & Co KG, a company which became the subject of formal insolvency proceedings on 13 September 2002. The
Group does not expect to recelve a significant amount, if any, from the exercise of its put option.

The following information is given in respect of the Group’s share of all joint ventures:

Group Group (i)

2003 2002

£m £m

Turnover 76.5 130.2
Fixed assets 4.1 3.6
Current assets 82.7 85.1
Liabilities due within one year (47.6) (66.0)
Liabilities due after more than one year (11.4) (2.5)

(i) This includes the Group's 22% share of KirchPayTV's turnover up until it ceased to be treated as a jaint venture on 8 February 2002.

. Group's share_

- \ of KirchPayTV ¥
. (as adjusted)

: 1 April to

8 November

2001

£m

Turnover \." 66.5
Operating loss - (70.0)
Net interest payable , (3.6)
Loss betore taxation (73.6)
Taxation -
Loss after taxation (73.6)

As KirchPayTV ceased to be treated as a joint venture from 8 February 2002, no joint venture balance sheet disclosure has been provided for either 2003 or 2002.

in the absence of KirchPayTV results for the period from 1 July 2001 to B February 2002, the resuits for a similar period, the period from 1 Aprit 2001 to 8 Novemnber 2001, have
been used.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

15 Other fixed asset investments

The following are included in the net book value of other fixed asset investments:

Group Group Company Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Investments in subsidiary undertakings (a} - - 4,861.7 49722
Investment in own shares (b) 34.6 422 - -
Other investments (c) 43.9 64.9 43.4 61.2
78.5 107.1 4.905.1 5,033.4
{(a) Investment in subsidiary undertakings
The movement in the year was as follows:
Company 2003 2002
Cost or valuation £m £m
Beginning of year 7,480.9 7,490.9
Additions 1.0 -
Merger relief () {111.5) -
End of year 7,380.4 7.490.8
Provision
Beginning of year 2.518.7 1,372.4
Provision against investment in KirchPayTV (ii) - 1,146.3
End of year 2,518.7 2,518.7
Net book value
Beginning of year 49722 6,118.5
End of year 4,861.7 4,972.2

Since 30 June 1994, the Company’s cost of investment in Sky has been carried at Directors’ valuation of £994.6 million (an increase of £930 million) being Sky’s net asset value at
that date. The net book value is nil {2002: nil),

2003
() The Company has taken advantage of merger relief available under Section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 and has reduced its investment in Bi8 following the issue of shares
on 11 November 2002 to BT in respect of the deferred consideration for the acquisition of 19.9% of BiB in June 2001.

2002
(i) The provision against the investment in KirchPayTV aligned the value of the indirect investment in KirchPayTV in the Company’s balance sheet with the carrying value of KirchPayTV
in the Group’s balance sheet of nil.

(b) Investment in own shares
The movement in the year was as follows:

o Number of Group

~ . Ordinary Shares £m

Beginning of year : 6,599,637 42.2
Share options exercised during the year (1,142,625) (7.6)
End of year 5,457,012 34.6

At 30 June 2003, the Group's ESOP held 5.5 million QOrdinary Shares in the Company (2002: 6.6 millicn) at an average value of £6.34 per share (2002: £6.39 per shage). These
shares were designated to hedge a portion of the Group's obligations outstanding under share schemes: the LTIP (4.0 million shares). the EBP (0.4 milion shares) and ¥ag KCP
(1.1 million shares). .

The 1.1 million Ordinary Shares utilised during the year relate to the exercise of LTIP and KCP awards.

The cost to the Group of the LTIP. EBP and KCP awards hedged by the ESOP is accrued over the relevant vesting penods of these schemes. An amount of £28.3 million is included
within accruals (2002: £19.3 million).

The market value of shares held by the ESOP at 30 June 2003 was £36.6 million (2002: £41.5 million), and the nominal value was £2.7 million (2002; £3.3 million).

46 Annual Repon ano Accounis 2000 British Sky Broadcasting Group pic
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Other fixed asset investments (continued)

(c) Other investments

Group Group Company Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m m
Cost
Beginning of year 1,119.9 161.2 121.2 121.2
Additions {vi) - 3.2 - -
Transter from joint ventures (x) - 971.4 - -
Transfer to joint ventures (i) (1.0) - - -
Disposals (i), (iv). {v), {vi}, (viii), (ix) (14.0) (15.9) - -
End of year 1,104.9 1.118.8 121.2 121.2
Provision
Beginning of year 1,055.0 38.1 60.0 -
Disposals (i}, (iv), (v), Vi), (viii), (ix) (13.7) {14.5) - -
Transfer from joint ventures (x) - 971.4 ~ -
Transfer to joint ventures (i) (1.0 - - -
Provided during the year, net (i), (iv), {vi) 20.7 60.0 17.8 60.0
End of year 1,061.0 1.055.0 77.8 60.0
Net book value
Beginning of year 64.9 123.1 61.2 121.2
End of year 43.9 64.9 43.4 B1.2

2003
() At 31 December 2002, the Group made a further provision against its minority equity investments in football clubs, leading to a non-cash exceptional charge of £21.0 million,
reduced by £3.2 million to reflect the post year end disposal of its investment in Chelsea Village plic (see note 30).

{ii) In Aprit 2003, the Group's total investment in Mykindaplace increased to 26%. The investment was subsequently transferred 1o Investments in Joint Ventures from Other Investments
at its net book value of nil.

(iiiy At 31 December 2002, the Group reduced its deferred revenue balance relating to minority investments in new media companies by £5.1 million, and reduced both its investment
and its provision against the investment in these companies accordingly.

(iv) At 31 December 2002, the Group made a provision against its investment in Open TV shares, leading to a non-cash exceptional charge of £2.8 million. This reduced the carrying
value of the Group’s investment in Open TV to £0.3 million. Between 12 February 2003 and 24 March 2003, the Group disposed of its entire investment in Open TV shares for total
consideration of £0.2 miliion, resulting in a loss of £0.1 milfion.

{v) In March 2003, the Group disposed of its investment in Streetsonline for total consideration of £0.6 million, which had been held at a cost of £6.0 million less provision of
£6.0 million. These amounts were written back upon disposat of the Group's investment in Streetsoniine.

2002
(vi} On 2 July 2001, the Group disposed of its unlisted investment in Static 2358 Limited for total consideration of £3.7 million, comprising a mixture of cash and shares in Open TV.
The Group made a profit on disposal of £2.3 million. The investment in Open TV shares was included as an addition to othemgvestments in the period.

-

(vii) At 31 December 2001, the Group made a provision against its minority equity investments in football clubs, leading to 2 non-cash gxceptional charge of £60.0 million.

(viil) On 26 February 2002 the Group sold its listed investment in Gameplay plc for total consideration of £0.03 million, realising a profit on disposal of £0.03 million, The Group's
investment in Gameplay plc was held at cost of £12.3 million less provision of £12.3 million. These amounts were written back upon disposal of the Group's investment in
Gameplay plc.

(ix) On 7 June 2002 the Group disposed of its listed investment in Toyzone plc following its liquidation. The Group's investment in Toyzone pic was held at cost of £2.2 million less
provision of £2.2 million. These amounts were written back upon disposal of the Group's investment in Toyzone plc. -
(x) The Group's investment in KirchPayTV was treated as a joint venture until 8 February 2002, after which date the Group considered that it was no longer able to exercise sigaificant
influence over KirchPayTV. The investment is now treated as a fixed asset investment and was transferred from Investments in joint ventures to Other investments on 8 February
2002 at a net book value of nil.

Further analysis of listed investments is shown below:

Group Group Company Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

£m £m £m £m

Carrying value of listed investments included above® 37.4 49.4 ar.4 48.2

Aggregate market value of listed investments at end of year 44.6 40.1 44.6 39.4
‘Including investments listed on OFEX.

No tax liability would arise on the sale of these listed investments at the market value shown above as no gains would arise.
British Sky Broadcasting Group plc %inue ~2r 47
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued
16 Stocks
2003 2002
£m £m
Group
Television programme rights 337.2 367.3
Set-top boxes and related equipment 29.0 42.2
Raw materials and consumables 1.6 4.4
Goods held for resale 2.6 0.3
370.4 4142
At least 79% (2002: 77%) of the existing television programme rights at 30 June 2003 will be amortised within one year,
17 Debtors
Group Group Company Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 170.9 177.5 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 505.7 952.2
Amounts owed by joint ventures (see note 27) 16.0 15.2 - -
Amounts owed by other related parties (see note 27) Q.4 10 - -
Other debtors 6.4 85 - -
Prepaid programme rights 53.8 80.5 - -
Prepaid transponder rentals 16.8 1565 - -
Advance Corporation Tax 39.7 18.2 21.3 -
Deferred tax assets (see note 18) 30.8 13.9 14.8 -
Prepaid media agency rights 26 3.7 -~ -
Other prepayments and accrued income 56.6 66.9 2.2 3.8
394.1 400.9 544.0 956.0
Debtors: Amounts falling due after more than one year )
Prepaid programme rights 2.7 38.6 - -
Prepaid transponder rentals 48.7 55.6 - -
Advance Corporation Tax - 67.1 - 559
Deferred tax assets (see note 18) 159.0 24.9 107.8 -
Prepaid media agency rights 5.5 12.8 - -
Other prepayments and accrued income 7.0 8.0 4.2 4.4
2229 207.0 112.0 60.3
18 Deferred tax assets
~. Group Group Company Company
™. 2003 2002 2003 2002 -«
~ ¥ £m £m £m £m
!
Included within debtors due within one year: !
- tax losses carried forward 20.7 11.7 14.8 -
- accelerated capital allowances 6.7 2.2 - -
- short-term timing differences 3.4 - - -
30.8 13.9 14.87% -
included within debtors due after more than one year: o i
- tax losses carried forward 125.0 - 107.8 -
- accelerated capital allowances 21.5 24.9 - -
- short-term timing differences 12.5 - - -
159.0 24.9 107.8 =
189.8 38.8 1226 -
Deferred tax asset
Beginning of year 38.8 143.9 - 63.2
Credit (charge) in the profit and loss account during the year 151.0 (105.1) 122.6 63.2)
End of year 189.8 38.8 122.6 -
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Deferl’ed tax assets (continued)

ﬁ?u‘é"ed within the total deferred tax asset recognised at 30 June 2003 is £145.7 milion (2002; £11.7 million), relating to camied forward tax losses.

ollowing @ review of the forecast utiisation of tax losses within the Group. and as a consequence of a planned reorganisation of certain assets within the Group. the Directors
ider that there is now sufficient evidence to support the recognition of these deferred tax assets on the basis that it is more fikely than not that there will be suitable taxable

NS N
g?oﬁts against which these assets can be utilised.

The amount of unrecognised deferred tax present within the Group is disclosed in note 9.

ompany
?he total deferred tax asset recognised at 30 June 2003 of £122.6 million (2002: nil) can be offset only against future taxable profits generated in the Company. The Directors consider

that there is now sufficient evidence to suppont the recognition of this deferred tax asset on the basis that it is more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits against
which these assets can be utilised.

The Company has no unrecognised deferred tax assets (2002: £83.3 million).

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Group Group Company Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m

Short-term borrowings
£200 million RCF {see note 20a) - - - -
Obligations under finance leases 0.2 1.5 - -
0.2 15 - -

Other

Trade creditors 323.4 3111 - -
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 416.4 418.0
Amounts due to joint ventures {see note 27) 0.8 - - -
Amounts due to related parties (see note 27) 24.6 20.4 - -
UK corporation tax 27.6 4.7 - -
VAT 61.7 86.2 - -
Social security and PAYE 0.4 7.0 - -
Other creditors 43.5 420 - -
Accruals and deferred income 473.0 4325 35.8 48.5
955.0 903.9 452.2 466.5
955.2 905.4 452.2 466.5

Included within trade creditors are £226.2 million (2002: £243.6 million) of US dollar-denominated programme creditors. At least 90% (2002: 90%) of these were covered by forward
rate currency contracts (see note 25).

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

N

™~ Group Group Company Company
~ 2003 2002 2003 2002
L Em £m £m £m

Long-term borrowings
£750 milion RCF (a) - 500.0 - 500.0
£600 million RCF (a) 75.0 - 75.0 -
US$650 million of 8.200% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2009 (o) 412.5 4125 412.5 412.5
£100 miflion of 7.750% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2009 (b) 100.0 100.0 100.0 T+ 1000
US$600 million of 6.875% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2009 (b) 367.2 367.2 367.2 367.2
USS$300 million of 7.300% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in 2006 (b) 189.2 189.2 188.2 *189.2
Obligations under finance leases (c) ’ 7.5 78 - -
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings (d) - - 736.1 736.1
Other borrowings 0.2 0.2 - -
1,151.6 1,578.9 1.880.0 2,305.0

Other

Accruals and deferred income 20.5 18.0 - -

1.172.1 1.582.9 1,880.0 2,305.0
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

(a) RCFs

In March 2003 the Group entered into a new £600 million RCF. This facility was used to cance! the £750 million RCF. which was entered into in July 1989, and will be used for general
corporate purposes. The new £600 million RCF has a maturity date of March 2008 and interest accrues at a margin of between 0.600% and 1.125% above the London inter-Bank
Offer Rate ("LIBOR"), dependent on the Group's Net debt:EBITDA leverage ratio (as defined in the loan agreement). Until June 2004, the margin is fixed at 1.125% and shall not fall
below 0.700% per annum above LIBOR prior to March 20086.

Also in March 2003, the Group voluntarity cancelied £100 million of the £300 milion March 2001 RCF. The maturity date of the resultant £200 million RCF is still June 2004 and should
it be drawn upoN, accrues interest at a rate (presently 1.250%) above LIBOR dependent on the Group's credit rating. This facility reduction. together with the replacement of the Group's
£750 million RCF as described above, reduced the Group's aggregate available facilities from £1,050 million to £800 million. In June 2004, when the £200 million RCF matures, the
aggregate facilities available to the Group will be reduced to £600 million. These reductions in committed bank facilities are consistent with the Group's anticipated liquidity requirements.

(b} Guaranteed notes
At 30 June 2003 the Group also had in issue the following publicly-traded guaranteed notes:

US$B850 million of 8.200% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in July 2009, At the time of issuing these notes, the US dollar proceeds were swapped into pounds sterling at an average
fixed rate of 7.653% payable semi-annually. In December 2002 and March 2003, the Group amended the terms relating to £63.5 million of these swap arrangements, the effect of
which was 10 fix the interest rate on £63.5 million at 5.990% until January 2004, after which time it will revert to a ficating rate equal to six months LIBOR plus a margin of 3.390%.

£100 million of 7.750% Guaranteed Notes. repayable in July 2009. The fixed coupon is payable annually,

US$600 million of 6.875% Guaranteed Notes, repayabie in February 2009. At the time of issuing these notes, the US dollar proceeds were swapped into pounds sterfing at an
average fixed rate of 8.200%, payable semi-annually.

USS$300 million of 7.300% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2006. At the time of issuing these notes, the Group entered into swap transactions to convert the dollar proceeds
to pounds sterling, haif of which carries a fixed rate of interest of 8.384% until maturity, payable semi-annually. The remainder was fixed at 7.940% until 15 April 2002, thereafter
floating at 0.620% over six months LIBOR. again payable semi-annually. In respect of this remaining floating exposure, on 16 January 2002, the Group entered into a further interest
rate hedging arrangement to fix the rate at 6.130% from 15 April 2002, payable semi-annually for the remainder of the life of the Notes.

Both the bank faciities and the publicly-traded guaranteed notes have been guaranteed by British Sky Broadcasting Uimited and Sky Subscribers Services Limited (see note 25).

Borrowings outstanding. which exclude finance leases, are repayable as follows:

Group Group Company Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Amounts repayable:
- between one and two years - 500.0 - 500.0
- between two and five years 264.3 189.2 1,000.3 925.3
-~ after five years 879.8 879.9 879.7 879.7

1.144.1 1,569.1 1,880.0 2,305.0

{c} Finance leases
Obligations under finance leases are repayable as follows:

Group Group Company Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Amounts repayable:
- within one year ~, 0.2 15 - -
- between one and two years ~ 0.3 0.4 - -
- between two and five years ~. " 409 08 - -
- after five years " 6.3 6.6 - -
117 9.3 - -

At 30 June 2003, all obligations under finance leases represent amounts drawn down in connection with the Customer Relationship Management Centre in Dunfermline. Repayments
of £0.7 miliion (2002: £0.8 million) were made against the Customer Relationship Management Centre lease and repayments of £1.5 milion {2002: £2.4 million) were made against
the IT asset leases, which were fully repaid in the current year. A proportion of these payments has been allocated to any capital amount outstanding. The Customerﬁg{ationship
Management Centre lease bears interest at a rate of 8.5% and expires in September 2020. i

{d) Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings ¢
Amcunts due to subsidiary undertakings represent an interest free loan which is repayable in full on 30 June 2007,
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

perivatives and other financial instruments

On page 11, the Operating and Financial Review provides an explanation of the role that financial instruments have had in the management of the Group's funding, liquidity and
foreign exchange rate risks, during the year.
As permitted by FRS 13, short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the FRS 13 disclosures. other than the currency risks disclosures.

interest rate risks
After taking into account interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts entered into by the Group, the interest rate profile of the Group's financial liabilities was:

2003 2002

Fixed Floating Total Fixed Floating Total

em 1.076.6 75.2 1.151.8 13782 200.2 1.578.4
Wweighted average interest rate 7.7% 4.8% 7.5% 7.7% 5.4% 7.4%

Weighted average period for which the rate is fixed (vears) 5.2 n/a n/a 5.1 n/a na

Weighted average term (years) 5.4 4.8 54 55 2.0 5.0

Further details of interest rates on long-term borrowings are given in note 20.

|n addition. cash at bank and in hand of £46.4 million (2002: £50.3 million) consists of sterling deposits, in bank accounts or on money markets, at overnight rates or on time deposits.
At 30 June 2003, there were no time deposit balances (2002: £0.5 million, expiring within 14 days of year end, at an average interest rate of 3.75%).

Currency risks

The table below shows the Group's currency exposures after hedging that give rise to the net currency gains and losses recagnised in the profit and foss account. Such exposures
comprise the net monetary assets and liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in the functional currency of the operating unit involved and principally consist of cash deposits,
trade debtors and trade creditors.

Net foreign currency monetary assets {£m)

2003 2002
usb Euros Total usph Euros Total

Functional currency of Group operating unit
Sterling 13.8 20.8 43.7 1.5 7.4 8.8

At 30 June 2003 and 30 June 2002, the Group also held open various currency forward contracts that the Group had taken out to hedge expected future foreign currency
commitments (see note 25(a)).

Liquidity risks
The profile of the Group's financial liabilities, other than short-term creditors, is shown in note 20. The expected profile of provisions is discussed in note 22.

The Group's undrawn committed bank facilities, subject to covenants, were as foliows:

2003 2002

£m £m

Expiring within one year 200.0 -
Expiring between one and two years - 550.0
Expiring between two and five years 525.0 -
Tetal 725.0 550.0

S

~.
-

Fair values
Set out below is a comparison by category of the book values and the estimated fair values of the Group's financial assets and fi nancnal habnmes and associated derivative financial
instruments at 30 June 2003 and 30 June 2002:

2003 2002
Book Fair Baook Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m v £m

Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group's operations o
Bank borrowings . (75.2) (75.2) {(500.2) (500.2)
Quoted bond debt (1.068.9} {1,185.2) (1.068.9) (1,067.8)
Finance leases 7.7) (7.7) 9.3) 9.3)
Cash deposits 46.4 46.4 50.83 50.3

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile

Combined interest and exchange rate swaps - 7.0 - 60.2
Forward foreign currency contracts - (51.4) - (50.3)

The fair values of quoted bond debt are based on period-end mid-market quoted prices. The fair values of other borrowings are estimated by discounting the future cash flows to
net present value. The fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated by calculating the difference between the contracted rates and the appropriate market rates
prevailing at the period ends.

In addition to the financial instruments in the above fair value table, the Group had holdings in the equity share capital of other listed investments at 30 June 2003 and 30 June 2002.
See notes 14 and 15 for disclosure of their book and fair values.

The difference between book value and fair value reflects unrealised gains or losses inherent in the instrument, based on valuations at 30 June 2003 and 30 June 2002
The volatile nature of the markets means that values at any subseguent date could be significantly different from the values reported above.

Longan 357 51

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc




2

-k

22

23

Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

Hedges

The Group's policy is to hedge the following exposures:

- interest rate risk, using interest rate and cross currency swaps

- transactional currency exposures, using forward foreign currency contracts
- exposures on long-term foreign currency debt, using cross currency swaps

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the hedged pesition is recognised. Unrecognised gains and losses on instruments used for hedging.

and the movements therein, are as foliows:

2003 2002
Total net Total net
gains gains
Gains Losses (losses) Gains Losses (losses)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Unrecognised gains and losses at the beginning of the year 73.8 {63.9) 9.9 113.7 (23.7) 80.0
Gains and losses arising in previous years that were recognised in the year 0.1) 45.5 45.4 (13.1) 4.0 .1
Gains and losses arising before the beginning of the year that were not recognised in the year  73.7 (18.4) 55.3 100.6 (19.7) 80.9
Gains and losses arising in the year that were not recognised in the year {34.9} (64.8) (99.7) (26.8) 44.2) (71.0)
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at the end of the year 38.8 (83.2) (44.4) 73.8 83.9) 9.9
Of which:
Gains and losses expected to be recognised in the next year 0.1 (46.4) (46.3) 0.1 37.7) (37.6)
Gains and losses expected to be recognised after the next year 38.7 {36.8) 1.8 73.7 26.2) 475
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Sky In-Home
Analogue Service Limited Sky Interactive Provision for
termination Transition recrganisation reorganisation closure of
provision provision provision (a) provision (b} Sky Pictures Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 July 2001 8.2 18.6 0.4 15.5 0.3 43.0
Utilised in year 4.1) (18.6) 0.2) 7.1) 0.3 (30.3)
Released in year (4.1) - - - - 4.1)
Transferred to fixed assets - - - (4.5) - (4.5)
At 30 June 2002 - - 0.2 3.9 - 4.1
Utilised in year - - {0.1) 0.8) - 0.9
At 30 June 2003 - - .1 3.1 - 3.2

{a) The remaining Sky In-Home Service Limited recrganisation provision principally comprises the costs of onerous lease co?ﬂcacts and is expected to be utilised by June 2005.

{b) The remaining Sky Interactive reorganisation provision principally comprises the cost of onerous contracts associated with the reogganlsauon and consolidation of all mteractwehr

and on-line activities within the division 'Sky Interactive’, and is expected to be utilised by June 2009.

Called-up share capital

—\‘
2003 < 2002
£m - Em
Authorised
3,000.000,000 Ordinary Shares of 50p 1,500.0 1,500.0
Allotted, cailed-up and fully paid - equity
Ordinary Shares - 1,937,754,876 (2002: 1,893,428,580) of 50p 968.9 946.7
Allotted and fully paid during the year
Number of

ordinary shares

Beginning of year
Options exercised under the Executive Share Option Scheme at between £0.500 and £6.385

1,893,428,580

666,838
Options exercised under the Sharesave Scheme at between £2.050 and £6.110 423,822
Shares issued in respect of deferred consideration for the acquisition of BiB 43,235,636
End of year 1,937,754,876

Movements in share capital in the year ended 30 June 2003 are described in note 24.

52
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* Notes to Financial Statements

continued

called up share capital (continued)

share option and contingent share award schemes
Total options and contingent share awards in existence at 30 June 2003 were as follows:

Number of
scheme Ordinary Shares
executive Share Option Scheme Options (a) 41,052,567
sharesave Scheme Options (b) 3,748,134
LTIP Awards (c) 7,269,683
KCP Awards (d) 1,135,000
EBP Awards (e) 397.000

53,603,384
(a) Executive Share Option Scheme Options
Options in existence at 30 June 2003 under the Executive Schemes are shown in the table below:
Number of Option price Exercisable
Qrdinary Shares £ from
Date of grant
8 December 1994 172,785 2.560 8 December 1997
15 May 1997 266,078 5.675 15 May 2000
10 June 1997 15,061 5.875 10 June 2000
18 August 1997 6,864 4.370 18 August 2000
18 August 1997 21.809 4.420 18 August 2000
14 November 1997 7,308 4.105 14 November 2000
14 November 1997 36.253 4.030 14 November 2000
4 February 1998 8,298 3.615 4 February 2001
1 December 1838 3.624.812 5010 1 December 2001
7 May 1998 4,589 4.350 7 May 2002
12 August 1999 600.000 5.830 12 August 2002
18 October 1999 1,124 0.980 18 October 2002
29 October 1999 4,382,303 6.385 29 October 2002
1 Novemnber 1999 214,231 6.535 1 November 2002
22 November 1999 107.775 6.485 22 November 2002
5 April 2000 41,517 13.970 5 April 2003
12 May 2000 20,800 12.980 12 May 2003
22 May 2000 21.842 10.530 22 May 2003
23 May 2000 126,529 9.800 23 May 2003
12 Juneg 2000 34,998 11.430 12 June 2003
30 June 2000 100,931 12.880 30 June 2003
26 July 2000 46,077 12.370 26 July 2003
30 August 2000 267.535- 11.400 30 August 2003 N
23 November 2000 5,698,957 5 9.800 23 November 2001
1 December 2000 3,901,500 . 9,840 1 December 2003
4 January 2001 59,5634 10.750 4 January 2002
26 February 2001 66,746 9.340 26 February 2002
6 March 2001 92,416 9.290 6 March 2002
14 March 2001 121,289 8.950 14 Marek 2002
21 May 2001 74644 7.190 21 May 2002 &
4 June 2001 94,480 7.165 4 June 2002
26 July 2001 184,815 7.080 26 July 2002
6 November 2001 9,565,078 7.940 6 November 2002
13 November 2001 26,668 8.360 13 Novemnber 2002
4 January 2002 88,057 7.890 4 January 2003
14 February 2002 12,479 7.005 14 February 2003
26 February 2002 20.343 6.850 26 February 2003
14 May 2002 32.689 6.820 14 May 2003
5 June 2002 600,000 7.350 5 June 2005
28 June 2002 13,725 6.290 28 June 2003
5 August 2002 9,832,806 5.300 5 August 2004
20 September 2002 47,815 5.185 20 September 2004
30 September 2002 20,672 5.305 30 September 2004
2 January 2003 229.286 6.390 2 January 2005
20 February 2003 64,362 6.010 20 February 2005

18 March 2003 74,672 6.100 18 March 2005
41,052.567 :

Further details regarding the Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Options can be found in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 26 to 31.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Called up share capital (continued)

(b) Sharesave Scheme Options
Options in existence at 30 June 2003 under the Sharesave Scheme are shown in the table below:

Number of
Crdinary Shares

QOption price
£

Exercisable
_from

Date of grant

25 October 1995 6.841 3.020 1 February 2003
2 November 1996 17,752 4.620 1 January 2004
27 October 1997 30.066 3.720 1 January 2003
27 October 1997 26,932 3.720 1 January 2005
28 September 1998 164,341 3.780 1 December 2003
28 September 1998 89,830 3.780 1 December 2005
18 Qctober 1999 96.553 4.620 1 January 2003
18 October 1999 172.190 4.620 1 January 2005
18 October 1999 41,899 4.620 1 January 2007
3 October 2000 254,788 8.710 1 January 2004
3 October 2000 79.489 9.710 1 January 2006
3 October 2000 27,677 9.710 1 January 2008
28 September 2001 520.428 6.110 1 January 2005
28 September 2001 133,085 6.110 1 January 2007
28 September 2001 39,808 6.110 1 January 2009
30 September 2002 1,424,523 4.750 1 January 2006
30 September 2002 506,511 4,750 1 January 2008
30 September 2002 116.331 4.750 1 January 2010
3,749,134
Further details regarding the Sharesave Scheme can be found in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 26 to 31.
{c) LTIP Awards
Awards in existence at 30 June 2003 under the LTIP are shown in the table below:
Number of Option price Exercisable
Ordinary Shares £ from
Date of grant
3 November 2000 936,375 10.040 3 November 2002
3 November 2000 1,532,250 10.040 30 June 2003
21 November 2001 1,489,686 8.300 30 June 2003
21 November 2001 1,489,689 8.300 30 June 2004
2 August 2002 779,600 5.550 31 July 2004
2 August 2002 779,601 5.550 31 July 2005
13 August 2002 39861 5,600 31 July 2004
13 August 2002 ~ 39,361 5.600 31 July 2005
2 January 2003 91,880 6.380 31 July 2004
2 January 2003 91,880 6.390 31 July 2005
7.269,683
Further detalls regarding the LTIP can be found in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 26 to 31. .
(d) KCP Awards *\“
Awards in existence at 30 June 2003 under the KCP are shown in the table below: R
Number of Option price Exercisable
QOrdinary Shares £ from
Date of grant
21 November 2001 61,750 8.300 31 July 2002
21 November 2001 577,500 8.300 31 July 2003
4 March 2002 15,750 7.175 31 July 2003
9 August 2002 237,500 5.700 31 July 2003
9 August 2002 237,500 5.700 31 July 2004
14 August 2002 2,500 5.655 31 July 2003
14 August 2002 ~ 2.500 5.655 31 July 2004
1,135,000
Further details regarding the KCP can be found in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 26 to 31.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Called up share capital {continued)

(e EBP Awards
Awards in existence at 30 June 2003 under the EBP are shown in the table below:

Number of  Option price () Exercisable
Ordinary Shares € from
pate of grant
2 August 2002 178.500 n/a 31 July 2004
2 August 2002 178.500 n/a 31 July 2005
2 January 2003 20.000 n/a 31 July 2004
2 January 2003 20,000 n/a 31 July 2005
397,000
{i) Awards under the EBP take the form of a contingent right to acquire existing BSkyB shares at the vesting date.
Further details regarding the EBP can be found in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 26 to 31.
Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
Movement in shareholders' funds for both Group and Company include all mavements in reserves.
Total equity
Share Share Shares to Merger Profit and loss shareholders'
capital premium be issued reserve account funds (deficit)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
(a) Group
At 1 July 2001 944.4 2.377.6 256.9 340.8 (2,858.1) 1,060.6
Issue of share capital 2.3 34.0 (1.1) - (13.5) 217
Share issue costs - (1.8 - - - (1.8)
Loss for the financial year - - - - (1,382.6) (1,382.6)
Transfer from merger reserve - - - (74.1} 74.1 -
Translation differences on foreign currency net investment - - - - 1.4 1.4
At 4 July 2002 946.7 2,400.8 255.8 266.7 4,179.7) {300.7)
issue of share capital 222 125.8 (253.1) 1115 (1.6) 4.8
Share issue costs - 0.1 - - - @1
Profit for the financial year - - - - 190.3 190.3
Transfer from merger reserve - - - (79.2) 79.2 -
At 30 June 2003 968.9 2,5635.5 2.7 299.0 (3,911.8) (105.7)

At 30 June 2003, the cumulative goodwill written off directly to reserves by the Group amounted to £523.8 millicn {2002: £523.8 million).

During the year, £35.6 million {2002: £35.6 million) relating to the amortisation of BiB goodwill and £43.6 million (2002: £38.5 milion)
{ransferred from the Group merger reserve o the Group profit and foss reserve.

relating to the amortisation of SIG goodwill was

During the year the Company issued shares with a market value of £6.4 million (2002: £35.2 million) in respect of the exercise of options awarded under various share option schemes

with £4.8 million (2002: £14.3 milion) received from employees.

On 11 November 2002, the Company issued 43.2 million shares with a fair value of £253.1 million to HSBC, Matsushita and BT (*the selling shareholders”) in raspect of deferred
consideration for the acquisition of the remaining 67.5% of BiB in May and June 2001. The Group also agreed with the selling shareholders certain other terms relating to tha
agreement reached on 15 July 2000 for the acquisition by the Group of the interest of the selling shareholders in BiB. These includéd the waiver of the selling shareholders' rights
under the earn out provisions. The sarn owt provisions provided that if the valuation of BiB was €3 billion or more in January or July 2003, further contingent consideration would
have been payable to the selling shareholders. No liability had been recorded in the prior year in respect of this earn out. Additional Group merger reserve of £111.5 milfion was

created in relation to 20.8 million shares issued to BT in respect of deferred consideration for the acquisition of 18.8% of BiB.
In June 2002 the Company issued 168,375 new shares, which were used to satisfy par of the contingent consideration in respact

of the acquisition of the remaining 5% minority.

interest in WAPTV Limited in May 2001. A further 338,755 new shares are expected to be issued in September 2003 to satisfy the remaining contingent consideratign.

~

Share Share Shares to Capital Profit and loss Shareholders’ iy
capital premium be issued reserve account s funds
£m £m £m £m £m £m

(b} Company
At 1 July 2001 944.4 2,377.6 256.9 843.9 164.0 4,586.8
Issue of share capital 2.3 34.0 (1.1) - - 35.2
Share issue COsts - {1.8) - - - (1.8
Loss for the financial year - - - - (1,340.0) (1,340.0)
At 30 June 2002 946.7 2,408.8 255.8 843.9 (1,176.0) 3,280.2
Issue of share capital 22.2 125.8 (253.1) - - (105.1)
Share issue costs - {©.1) - - - 0.1)
Profit for the financial year - - - - 55.6 55.6
At 30 June 2003 968.9 2,535.5 2.7 843.9 {1,120.4) 3,230.6
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Notes to Fmanmal Statements

continued

25 Guarantees, contingencies and other financial commitments

a) Future expenditure

Group Group
2003 2002 v

£m £m

Contracted for, but not provided for in the accounts
- television programme rights (j) 1,617.8 2.165.6
- set-top boxes and related eguipment 106.0 126.9
- third party payments (i) 46.1 58.3
- capital expenditure 25 5.9
- other purchase obligations 7.5 -
1,779.9 2.356.7

(i) Of the commitments for television programme rights, £692 mitlion (2002: £1,005 million) related to commitments payable in US dollars for periods of up to ten years (2002: seven
years) and £136 million (2002: nil) related to commitments payable in Swiss francs for periods of up to three years. At 30 June 2003, the US dollar commitments have been translated
at the year end rate of US$1.6497:€1 (2002: US$1.5347:£1), except for US$566 million (2002: US$585 million) covered by forward rate contracts where the average forward rate
of US$1.4925:L1 {2002: US$1.3856:£1) has been used. The Swiss franc commitments have been transiated at the year end rate of CHF2.2288:£1, except for CHF38 million covered
by forward rate contracts where the average forward rate of CHF2.1068:£1 has been used.

The US dollar commitment disclosed above is subject to price escalation clauses in accordance with the terms of certain of the movie programme rights contracts. The extent of the
escalation, and hence of the commitments, is dependent both upon the number of subscribers to the relevant movie channel in certain cases and upon inflationary increases. If subscriber
numbers were to remain at 30 June 2003 levels, the additional commitment in respect of subscriber escalation would be £213 milion (US$351 million) (2002: £251 million (US$ 386 million)).

(i) The third party payment commitments in respect of distribution agreements for the Sky Distributed channels disclosed above are subject to price escalation clauses in accordance
with the terms of certain of the distribution agreements. The extent of the escalation, and the levels of the commitments, are dependent upon the number of DTH subscribers to the
relevant Sky Distributed channels and in certain cases upon inflationary increases. If both the DTH subscriber levels to these channels and the rate payable for each Sky Distributed
channel were to remain at 30 June 2003 levels, the additional commitment in respect of subscriber escalation would be £799 million (2002; £885 miflion), for periods of up to six
years (2002: six years).

At 30 June 2003, the Group had outstanding forward rate contract commitments to purchase in aggregate US$903 million (2002: US$920 million) at an average rate of US$1.4925:
£1 (2002: US$1.38586:£1). The Group also has outstanding forward rate contract commitments to purchase in aggregate CHF9S million (2002: nif) at average rates of CHF2.0834:€1
and CHF1.4844: Euro 1.

ST i e

b) Contingent liabilities
The Group has contingent liabilities by virtue of its investments in unlimited companies, or partnerships, which include Nickelodeon UK, The History Channel (UK), Paramount UK,
QVC and National Geographic Channe! UK.

The Directors do not expect any material loss to arise from the above contingent liabilities.
¢} Guarantees

Two of the Group's subsrdxary undertakings, British Sky Broadcasting Limited and Sky Subscribers Services Limited, have given joint and several guarantees in relation to the
Company's £200 million and £600 milion RCFs and the US$850 million, US$600 million, US$300 milion and £100 million Guaranteed Notes (see note 20).

The Group has agreed to provide additional funding to several of its investments in limited and unlimited companies and partnerships in accordance with funding agreements. ’

oty § R e e

d) Contingent consideration

On 29 May 2001, the Group acquired the 5% minonty interest in WAPTV Limited for a total consideration of £5.0 million. The consideration comprised 169,375 new BSkyB Ordinary
Shares issued on 29 May 2001, contingent consideration which was satisfied by the issue of a further 168,375 new BSkyB Ordinary Shares on 30 June 2002, and contingent
consideration which will be satisfied by the issue of 338,755 new BSkyB Ordinary Shares on 30 September 2003. The cgntingent consideration is contingent upon the vendors
remaining continuously in the employment of a member of the Group from completion until the date the deferred consuderaﬁn.;.s due The remaining contingent consideration has

been recognised and recorded within shares to be issued as it is considered probable that these criteria will be fuffiled. " €

e) Lease and similar commitments
The minimum annual rentals under these arangements are as follows:

3

S

Plant and

Property machinery - Total
£m £m .. £m ¢
. &
Group » h
30 June 2003 4
Operating leases and similar arrangements which expire: 5
— within one year 0.5 3.4 3.9 i
~ between two and five years . 24 26.2 28.6 L

- after five years 7.9 35.1 43.0
10.8 64.7 75.5 i
i
30 June 2002 [
Operating leases and similar arrangements which expire: {
- within one year 08 0.5 13 S
- between two and five years 0.9 14.6 155 B
- after five years 8.2 43.1 52.3 2
10.9 58.2 69.1

Group
The Group leases certain land and buildings on short-term and long-term operating leases. The rents payable under these leases are subject to renegotiation at the various intervals
specified in the leases.

Company i
At 30 June 2003, the Company had minimum annual rentals for property under operating leases and similar arrangements which expire between two and five years of £0.4 milion !
(2002: nil). i
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-~ Notes 1o Financial Statements

Continued

26 Regulatory update

office of Fair Trading ("OFT") . o . " S N "

on5 December 2000 the OFT announced that it was to conduct an inguiry into thg affairs of British Sky Broadcasting Limited (“BSkyB Limited”), under the UK Competition Act 1998
-Competition Act”), in particular the wholesale supply by BSkyB Limited of certain of its channels to third party distributors in the UK (). BSkyB Limited maintained that it had not
.( fringed the Competition Act and, on 17 December 2002, following submission by BSkyB Limited of written and oral representations. the OFT announced that BSkyB Limited had
l:ot peen found in breach of competition law in respect of its investigation. Such findings by the OFT may be appealed by third parties who have a “sufficient interest” in accordance
with the provisions of the Competition Act.

EC Investigation - FAPL ‘ o ‘ . ‘ o . ‘
The EC Commission has commenced rnvest_lgatnons into a number of ag_reements, decisions or practices leading to the acquisition of bmanast rights to football events within the
European Union, including the sale of exclusive broadcast rights to Premier League football by the Football Association Premier League Limited (“FAPL"). On 21 June 2002, BSkyB
Umited and the FAPL notified BSkyB Limited's current agreements for FAPL rights to the EC Commission seeking either a clearance or an exemption from Article 81 of the EC Treaty.
The FAPL has also notified the rules of the FAPL to the EC Commission. On 20 December 2002, the EC Commission issued a Statement of Cbjections to the FAPL outlining certain
concerns in respect of the FAPL's joint selling of broadcast rights to Premier League football. On 30 July 2003, the Group received a request for information from the EC Commission
concerning the current bidding process being undertaken by the FAPL. The Group is currently unable to assess whether this EC investigation will have a material effect on the Group.

EC Investigation - Movie Contracts
The EC Commission is investigating the terms on which movies produced by major US movie studios are supplied to distributors, including pay TV operators, throughout the European
union. The Group has co-operated with this investigation. At this stage, the Group is unable to determine whether it will have a matenal effect on the Group.

Transactions with related parties and major shareholders

a) Transactions with major shareholders
The Company and Group conduct business transactions on an arm's length basis with companies who are part of The News Corporation Group, a major shareholder:

- Twentieth Century Fox supplied prograrmming with a total value of £63.2 million in the year (2002: £55.9 million), the majority of which is supplied under arrangements extending
to December 2004, with a variable annual value dependent on the number of fims supplied. The Group also earned £0.5 million {(2002: nil) from Twentieth Century Fox in respect
of programming-related fees.

- NDS Limited supplied smart cards and encryption services with a value of £49.7 milion in the year (2002: £44.5 million) under a contract extending to September 2010. The Group
also has a number of contracts with NDS for the supply of digital equipment, of which £3.7 million (2002: £5.1 million) was paid during the year.

- Broadsystem Ventures Limited (“BVL") supplied telephony services with a value of £3.0 million during the year (2002: £2.0 milion). The Group also earned £4.2 million {2002:
£1.0 million) from BVL in respect of telephony services.

- News International plc and News America Publishing provided media-based advertising services worth £5.2 million in the year (2002: £4.9 million) and News International pic
provided rental premises at a cost to the Group of £0.4 million in the year (2002: £0.4 million). The Group also earned £1.7 million (2002: £1.1 milion) from News International plc
for the provision of airtime.

- Orbis Technology Limited and Visonik supplied interactive and internet-based services of £2.3 million in the year (2002; £0.9 million).
- National Rugby League Limited and News Interactive sold sports rights to the Group during the year worth £4.0 million {2002: £3.4 million).

- STAR Television Group (“STAR"), Fox News Channel and Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment paid the Group £1.4 million during the year (2002: £1.3 million) for the provisioh
of transponder capacity. The Group paid STAR £1.5 million {2002: £1.2 million) in respect of carriage fees for the supply of programming.

- JSkySports Corporation, ESPN STAR Sports and Fancy A Flutter Limited paid the Group £0.9 million (2002: £0.5 million) of fees related to programming.

Balances payable to the above companies which form part of The News Corporation Group, analysed by activity:

2003 2002
~ £m £m
Programming = ' X, 226 18.2
Encryption services . 0.7 2.2
Telephony services ! 0.9 -
Advertising 0.4 -
24.6 204

Balances receivable from members of The News Corporation Group, analysed by activity: '\ ‘
2003 « 2002
£m £m
Transponders 0.1 0.4
Other 0.3 0.6
0.4 1.0

s H
) Where an undertaking has intentionally or negligently infringed the Competition Act. it may be fined up to a maximum of 10% of its totaf UK turnover for each year it is found to be in breach, up to a maximum
of three years. In addition, third parties. such as customers and competitors. may be entitled to recover damages where they have suffered loss as a result of conduct in breach of the Competition Act.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued
Transactions with related parties and major shareholders (continued)
b} Transactions with joint ventures
All transactions with joint ventures are conducted on an arm'’s length basis.
2003 2002
£m £m
Revenue 19.4 23.0
Operating costs 63.8 53.9
Revenues are primarily generated from the provision of transponder capacity, marketing and suppon services, together with commissions receivable. Operating costs represent fees
payable for channel carriage.
2003 2002
£m £m
t
Funding to joint ventures {see note 14) . 234.8 224.7
Amounts owed by joint ventures (see note 17) 16.0 15.2
Armounts owed to joint ventures (see note 19) 0.8 -
c) Other transactions with related parties
Elisabeth Murdoch is the daughter of Rupert Murdoch, and sister to James Murdoch, both Directors of the Company, and owns 60% of the ordinary share capital of Shine
Entertainment Limited, in which the Group has a 3.5% equity shareholding. During the year. the Group incurred development and production costs for television of £2.0 million (2002:
£1.3 million) from Shine Entertainment Limited. At 30 June 2003, there were no outstanding amounts due to or from Shine Entertainment Limited (2002: nil).
Notes to consolidated cash flow statement ' §
a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows !
Before Before J
goodwill and Goodwill and goodwill and  Goodwill and !l
exceptional exceptional 2003 exceptional exceptional 2002 }
items items Total items items Total .
£m £m £m £m £m £m ¥
Operating profit (loss) 370.7 (116.7) 254.0 191.5 (136.5) 55.0 B
Depreciation 97.9 - 97.9 81.1 - 811 :
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangible fixed assets - 121.5 121.5 0.1 118.3 118.4 !
Profit on sale of fixed assets {0.3} - (0.3) - - - .
Decrease in stock 43.8 - 43.8 9.9 - 9.9 ;
Decrease in debtors 88.0 - 88.0 77.9 22.3 100.2 k]
Increase (decrease) in creditors 59.6 - 59.6 (80.5) - (80.5) i
Provision utifised, net (0.8} - {0.9) 0.3) (34.1) (34.4)
Net cash inflow {outflow) from operating activities 658.8 4.8 663.6 279.7 (30.0) 249.7 3
b) Analysis of changes in net debt
\\
At 1 July 2002 e 1.Cash flow At 30 June 2003 .
£m \ £m £m ’
Overnight deposits 387 (6.0) 327 !
Other cash 11.1 2.6 13.7 |
48.8 (3.4) 46.4 f
Short-term deposits 05 0.5) - wh
Cash at bank and in hand 50.3 (3.9 864 " bl
Debt due after more than one year (1.568.1) 425.0 (1,144.1)
Finance leases (8.3 1.6 7.7) .
Total debt ) (1,578.4) 426.6 (1,151.8)
1
Total net debt (1.528.1) 4227 (1,105.4) ;
|
f
1
3
§
|
H
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

28 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

¢) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

2003 2002

NOTE £m m

Decrease in cash (3.4) (103.8)
Decrease in short-term deposits (0.5} (69.5)
Cash outflow resulting from decrease in debt and lease financing 426.6 191.7
Decrease in net debt 422.7 18.4
Net debt at beginning of year {1,528.1) {1,546.5)
Net debt at end of year 28b (1,105.4) (1.528.1)

d) Major non-cash transactions

2003

Issue of shares - deferred consideration for 8iB

On 11 November 2002, the Company issued 43,2 milfion shares with a fair value of £253.1 million to HSBC, Matsushita and 8T in respect of deferred consideration for the acquisition
of the remaining 67.5% of BiB in May and June 2001.

2002

Impairment of investment in KirchPayTV

Effective 31 December 2001, the Group wrote down the carrying value of its investment in KirchPayTV to nil (see note 14). The write-down resulted in a net non-cash exceptional
charge to the profit and loss account of £971.4 million.

29 Financing arrangements
At 30 June 2003, the Group's balance sheet showed net liabilities of £105.7 million. The Directors consider that the operating cash flows of the Group. together with its own bank

facilities, will be sufficient to cover the Group’s projected operating requirerents and to settle or refinance the Group's other liabiiities as they falt due, for a minimum period of
12 months from the date of signing these financial statements. Accordingly the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

30 Post balance sheet events
On 22 July 2003, the Group entered into a binding agreement for the sale of its 9.9% equity investment in Chelsea Village plc for consideration in cash of £5.9 mitlion.

On 8 August 2003, it was announced that the Group had successfully bid for all four packages of exclusive five UK rights to FA Premier League football from the beginning of the
2004/05 season to the end of the 2006/07 season. The total cost of the new agreement for the four UK live packages is £1,024 million over three years.
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Notes to Financial Statements

continued

Principal Group investments

The investments of the Company and the Group which principally affect the consolidated results and net assets of the Group are as follows:

Country of
incorporation/ Description and proportion
Name operation of shares held (%) Principal activity

Subsidiaries: Direct holdings

British Sky Broadcasting Limited
Sky Television Limited

Sky In-Home Service Limited
Sports Internet Group Limited

British interactive Broadcasting
Holdings Limited (a)

Subsidiaries: indirect holdings

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales

10,000,002 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each (100%)

13,376,982 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each (100%)

1,576,000 Ordinary Shares
of €1 each (100%)

38,247,184 Ordinary Shares
of 5p each (100%)

651,960 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each (100%)

The transmission of the Group's English language satellite television

broadcasting services
Holding company

The supply, installation and maintenance of satellite television

receiving equipment

The provision of sports content, betting and e-commerce services

The transmission of interactive services

Sky Subscribers Services Limited
Hestview Limited

Sky Interactive Limited

Sky Ventures Limited

British Sky Broadcasting SA

Sky New Media Ventures plc

Joint ventures

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Luxembourg

England and Wales

2 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each (100%)

108 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each {100%)

2 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each (100%)

912 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each (100%)

12,500 Crdinary Shares
of £12 each (100%)

12,500 Ordinary Shares
of £1 each (100%)

The provision of ancillary functions supporting the satellite television

broadcasting operations of the Group
Licensed bookmakers

The provision of interactive television services

Holding company for joint ventures

Digital satellite transponder leasing company

Hoelding company for new media investments

Nickelodeon UK
The History Channel (UK)

Paramount UK (b)
Australian News Channe! Pty Limited

Granada Sky Broadcasting Limited (c)
MUTV

National Geographic Channe! (d)
Music Choice Europe Limited

Attheraces plc

Chelsea Digital Media Limited

England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
Australia

England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales

England and Wales

104 B Shares of
£0.01 each (50%)

50,000 A Shares of

£1 each (50%)
Partnership interest (25%)
1 Ordinary Share of
AUSS1 (33.33%)

800 B Shares of

£1 each (80%)

100 B Shares of

£1 each (33.33%)
Partnership interest (50%)

44,001,120 A Shares of
£1 each (36.4%)

1,000 Ordinary Shares of
£1 each (33.33%)

19,800 B Shares of £0.01
each (20%) and 3,860,174
redeemable preference
shares of £1 each

The transmission of children’s television services

The transmission of history and biography television services

The transmission of a general entertainment comedy channel

The transmission of R24—hour news channel

-

The transmission of general entertainment channels

The transmission of the Manchester United football channe!

The transmission of natural history and adventure channels

The transmission of audio music channels

The transmission of a horse racing service and related

on-line activities

The production and marketing of the Chelsea Football Club

football channel

ot s e e

A

Noies

\
(a
(o
{c
(

The economic interest held in Granada Sky Broadcasting Limited is 49.5%.
d) The registered address of National Geographic Channel is Grant Way, Isleworth, Middiesex TW7 5QD.

)‘80<1 % directly held by British Sky Broadcasting Group plc and 19.9% held by British Sky Broadcasting Limited.
) The registered address of Paramount UK is 15-18 Rathbone Place. London W1P 1DF,
)
)

—

-

e Cps et
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-~ Five Year Summary

consolidated results

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m £m £m
DTH subscribers 2,341 1,929 1,537 1,189 979
Cable and OTT subscribers 202 279 299 303 253
Advertising 284 251 271 242 217
interactive 218 186 a3 5 -
Other 141 131 108 108 96
Turnover 3,186 2,776 2,306 1,847 1,545
Operating expenses. net (2,815) (2.584) (2.146) (1,762) (1.360)
Goodwill amortisation (122) (119) (44) - -
Exceptional operating costs 5 (18) (23) {103) (456)
Operating profit (loss) 254 55 a3 {20) 271)
Share of operating results of joint ventures 3 (76) (256) (122) (58)
Joint ventures' goodwill amortisation, net - (1,070) (10%) (14) -
Share of joint venture’s 10ss on sale of fixed asset investment - - (70) (14) -
Profit loss) on sale of fixed asset investments - 2 - (1) -
Amounts written off fixed asset investments, net (15) (60) (39) - -
Release of provision {provision) for loss on disposal of subsidiary - 10 {10) - -
Net interest payable and similar charges (114) (137) (132 (92) (60)
Protit {loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 128 (1,276) (515) [263) (389)
Taxation credit (charge) (i) 62 {107) (24) 65 103
Profit (loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 190 (1,383) {539) (198) (286)
Statistics
Basic earnings (loss) per share 9.9p (73.3p) (29.2p) (11.3p) (16.6p)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 9.8p (73.3p) (29.2p) (11.3p) (16.6p}
Dividend per share
- interim - - - - 2.75p
- final - - ~ - -
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets (€ million) 98 101 133 58 76
Direct-to-home subscribers ('000) 6,845 6,101 5.453 4,513 3,460
Cable subscribers {"000) (i) . 3,871 4,091 3,486 3.735 3,778
DTT subscribers ('000) {iii) 1,510 - 1,105 740 204
Total subscribers {'000) 12,226 10,192 10,044 8,988 7,442
Average number of full-time equivalent employees 9,132 9,083 8,948 10,730 8,271
Capital employed £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets 991 1,129 2,411 1,886 343
Working capital (191) (17) 15 32 2
Provisions, tax and dividends (i) 199 115 182 24 (228)
Net debt (1,705, (1.528)  (1.547)  (1,145) (665)
Net (liabilities) assets {106) (301) 1.061 797 (548}
}

wole ¢

0} The taxation credit for 2000 and 1999 was restated fallowing the adoption by the Group of FRS 19, Deferred tax in the year ended 30 June 2001, Adoption of FRS 19 resulted

in the recalculation of loss per share for 2000 and 1998,

{i) The cable subscribers disclosure for 2000 and 1999 was restated in the year ended 30 June 2001 to include Eire subscribers.

(i) From 2003, the DTT subscriber number consists of BARB’s estimate of the number of homes with access to Freeview. Up until 2001, this subscriber number inclyded all those
subscribing to TV Digital's (previously On Digital) DTT service. S

o
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Shareholders’ Service

Share price information

The Company's share price is broadcast on SkyText on the Sky News channel on page
145, BBC Ceefax page 221 and on Channe! 4 Teletext page 520. all under the prefix
BSkyB. It also appears in the financial columns of the nationai press.

The latest BSkyB share price is available from the Financial Times Cityline Service.
on 0906 843 4816.

Shares on-line
You can also access your shareholding on-line and find a range of other services at the
Loyds TSB Registrars Shareholder website, www.shareview.co.uk.

ShareGift

Sharehclders who only have a small number of shares whose value makes it uneconomic
to sell them may wish to consider donating them to charity through ShareGift, the
independent charity share donation scheme (registered charity no. 1052686). Further
information about ShareGift may be obtained from Uoyds TSB Registrars or from
ShareGift on 020 7337 0501 or at www.sharegift.org. There are no implications for capital
gains tax purposes (no gain or loss) on gifts of shares to charity and it is also possible to
claim income tax refief.

Shareholder enquiries

All administrative enquiries relating to shareholders, such as notification of change of
address or the loss of a share certificate, should be made to the Company's registrars
whose address is given on the next page.

Breakdown of shareholders at June 2003

By Type
v ¥ BSkyB Holdco Inc. 35%
Fund Management Groups 34%
B Other 13%
B Insurance Companies 1%
Pension Funds 4%

@ »
wgﬁg‘ 1 Miscellaneous Banks 3%

Breakdown of shareholders at June 2003

By Location

B BSkyB Holdco Inc. 35%

London 34%
B USA & Canada 10%

Continental Eurcpe 7%
1 Other 7%
% Scotland 5%
I Rest of UK and Eire 2%
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Corporate Shareholder Information

Board of Directors

Rupert Murdoch (Chairman)

Tony Ball (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director)
Philip Bowman (Audit Committee Chairman)

Chase Carey

David DeVoe

David Evans

Allan Leighton

James Murdoch

Jacgues Nasser

Gail Rebuck

Arthur Siskind

Lord St John of Fawsley {Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)
Martin Stewart (Chief Financial Officer)

John Thornton (Remuneration Committee Chairman)
Lord Witson cf Dinton

Company Secretary
David Gormiley

Financial Calendar
Results for the financial year ending 30 June 2004

Q1 November 2003
Q2 February 2004
Q3 May 2004
Q4 August 2004
AGM November 2004

Company information
Registered office:

Grant Way

Isleworth

Middlesex TW7 5QD
Telephone 0870 240 3000

Internet address
http://www.sky.com

Registrars

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway

Worthing

West Sussex BNGS 8DA
Telephone 0870 600 3970

ADR Depository

The Bank of New York

Investor Relations

PO. Box 11258 ~
Church Street Station h

New York, NY 10286-1258 . '
Telephone (US) 1-888-BNY-ADRS

Telephone (International) +1 (801) 312 8315

www.adrbny.com

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP .

180 Strand ™.,

London WC2R 1BL B &

Principal Bankers
Barclays Bank plc
27 Soho Square
London W1A 4WA

Solicitors

Herbert Smith
Exchange House
Primrose Street
London EC2A 2HS

Company Registration Number
2247735
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